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AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors hereby submit their annual report to the members together with the audited financial
statements of the Group and Company for the financlal year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Group and Company are principally engaged in the underwriting of life insurance business,
including investment-linked business. There have been no significant changes in the nature of this
principal activity during the financial year.

RESULTS
Group Company
RM'000 RM'000
Net loss for the financial year (8,108) (5,780)
SHARE CAPITAL

There was no issuance of shares by the Company during the financial year.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year.
The Directors do not recommend any dividend to be paid for the current financial year under review.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

All material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year are disclosed in
the financial statements.

PROVISION FOR INSURANCE LIABILITIES

Before the financial statements of the Group and the Company were made out, the Directors took
reasonable steps to asceriain that there was adequate provision for insurance liabilites in
accordance with the valuation methods specified in Part D of the Risk-Based Capital (“RBC")
Framework issued by Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM") for Insurers.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Before the financial statements of the Group and Company were made out, the Directors took
reasonable sfeps to ensure that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad
debis and the making of allowance for doubtful debts, and satisfied themselves that all known bad
debts had been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS (CONTINUED)

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances that would render the
amounts written off for bad debis or the amounts of allowance for doubtful debts in the financial
statements of the Group and Company inadequate to any substantial extent.

CURRENT ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Group and Company were made out, the Directors took
reasonable steps fo ensure that any current assets, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary
course of business, their values as shown in the accounting records of the Group and Company
have been written down to an amount which the current assets might be expected to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the
values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and Company
misleading.

VALUATION METHODS

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which
render adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and
Company misleading or inappropriate.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(a) any charge on the assets of the Group and Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

{b) any contingent liability of the Group and Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year.

No contingent or other liahility of the Group and Company has become enforceable, or is likely to
become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in
the opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and Company to
meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

For the purpose of this paragraph, contingent or other liabilities do not include liabilities arising from
contracts of insurance underwritten in the ordinary course of business of the Group and Company.
CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise dealt with

in this report or the financial statements of the Group and Company, which would render any amount
stated in the financial statements misleading.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The results of the operations of the Group and Company for the financial year were not, in the opinion
of the Directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report
any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors,
to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group and Company for the financial year
in which this report is made.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who have held office during the financial year and during the period from the end of
the financial year to the date of the report are:

Jeneral (B} Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Abdul Rahman Bin Abdul Hamid
Tan Sri Dato’ Mohd Ghazali Bin Mohd Yusoff

Jean, Paul, Dominique, Louis Drouffe

Chong Kwai Ying (Ms) (appointed w.e.f. 25 January 2018)
Mazhairul Jamaludin (appointed w.e.f. 13 February 2018)
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 24(b} to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Statement of compliance with the Corporate Governance policy document — BNM/RH/PD-029-9

The Group and the Company have taken concerted steps to ensure compliance with BNM's
Corporate Governance policy document - BNM/RH/PD-029-9 (“Policy") and its best practice
applications. The Board of Directors ("Board™) is committed to the principles prescribed in the Policy.

The Board's responsibility and oversight

The Board affirms its overall responsibility for the Group's and the Company’s system of internal
controls and risk management, and for reviewing the adequacy and integrity of these systems.
However, such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and accordingly, they can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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The Board'’s responsibility and oversight {continued)

The Group and the Company have in place an on-going process for identifying, evaluating,
monitaring and managing significant risks that may affect the achievement of the Group's and of the
Company’s business objectives throughout the financial year under review and up to the date of this
report. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board via the Audit and Compliance Commitiee
and the Risk Management Committee.

The Board has generally complied with the Policy.

The Board currently has five (5) members, comprising three (3) Independent Non-Executive
Directors, one (1) Non-Executive Director and one (1) Executive Director. Together, the Directors
come from various fields with a balance of skills and experiences which are necessary to enable the
Group and Company to achieve its corporate objectives and fulfill all its fiduciary duties. The roles
and activities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are distinct and separate.

All the members of the Board have complied with the requirements of serving on the Board of not
more than 15 groups of companies.

The appointments of all the Board members were approved by BNM. All appointments and re-
appointments of Board members were subject to the evaluation and review by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board before the applications were submitted to
BNM for approval.

The Board meets at least six (6} times a year with additional meetings being convened as and when
necessary. For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has met six (6) times. All the
Directors satisfied the minimum attendance of at least 75% of the Board meetings held during the
financial year ended 31 December 2018,

The principal responsibilities of the Board include reviewing and approving a strategic plan,
overseeing the Group and Company's businesses, formalising documentation on matters
specificalty reserved for its decision and ensuring that the Group and Company's internal controls
and reporting procedures are adequate.
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The Board’s responsibility and oversight {continued)

The composition of the Board during the period since the date of the last report and the number of
meetings attended by each existing Director during the financial year ended 31 December 2018 are
as follows:

Name of Directors No. of Attendance
Jeneral (B) Tan Sri Dato' Seri Abdul Rahman Bin Abdul Hamid 5/6
Tan Sri Dato’ Mohd Ghazali Bin Mohd Yusoff 6/6
Jean, Paul, Dominique, Louis Drouffe 6/6
Chong Kwai Ying (Ms) (appointed w.e.f. 25 January 2018) 6/6
Mazhairul Jamaludin (appointed w.e.f. 13 February 2018) 6/6

The Board has established a number of Board committees and senior management committees.
Each committee operates within defined term of reference. Board committees are the Audit and
Compliance Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management
Committee and the Investment Committee. Senior management committees include the Executive
Committee, the Local Management Audit and Compliance Committee, the Local Product and
Management Committee, the Local Management Investment Committee and the Local Risk
Committee.
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Audit and Compliance Committee

The members of the Audit and Compliance Committee are as follows:

Chong Kwai Ying (Ms) (appointed w.e.f. 25
January 2018)

Jean, Paul, Dominique, Louis Drouffe {ceased to
be a member w.e.f. 1 July 2018)

Tan Sri Dato’ Mohd Ghazali Bin Mohd Yusoff Member (Independent Non-Executive)

Mazhairul Jamaludin {(appointed w.e.f. 13
February 2018)

Chairman (Independent Non-Executive)

Member (Non-Independent Non-Executive)

Member (Independent Non-Executive)

The Audit and Compliance Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director. The
Audit and Compliance Committee was established as a sub-committee of the Board with specific
Terms of Reference that have been approved by the Board. The principal objectives are to assist
the Board in discharging its statutory duties and responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting
practices of the Group and of the Company.

The principal duties and responsibilities are:

i) To review financial reports with management and the external auditors;

i) To recommend to the Board on the appointment of external auditors;

i)  Toreview on a regular basis the management activity in relation to audit findings;

iv)  To approve the annual internal audit plan;

v) To review management activity in relation to internal audit findings;

vi)  Toreview the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with [aws and regulations;
vii)  Toreview the findings of any examination by a regulatory agency and any auditor observations;
vili) To review and monitor the fraud and anti-money laundering policies of the Group and of the

Company;

ix)  Toreport on a regular basis to the Beard on the Audit and Compliance Committee's activities;
and;

X}  To perform any other activities according to the applicable requirements within the guidelines
from BNM.

Other responsibilities of the Audit and Compliance Committee are prescribed within the Terms of
Reference approved by the Board.
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Audit and Compliance Committee (continued)

The number of meetings attended by each member of the Audit and Compliance Committee during the

financial year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Name of Directors

No. of Attendance

w.e.f. 1 July 2018)

Chong Kwai Ying (Ms) (appointed w.e.f. 25 January 2018) 55
Mazhairul Jamaludin (appointed w.e.f. 13 February 2018) 5/5
Jean, Paul, Dominique, Louis Drouffe (ceased to be a member 212

Tan Sri Dato’ Mohd Ghazali Bin Mohd Yusoff

5/5

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit and Compliance Committee had reviewed
the annual financial statements, approved the external audit plan and annual internal audit plan. The
plan is developed to cover key operational areas, financial activities and information systems that are
significant to the overall performance of the Group and of the Company on a cyclical basis.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Mazhairul Jamaludin (appointed w.e.f. 13 February
2018)

Chairman (Independent Non-Executive)

Jeneral (B) Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Abdul Rahman Bin
Abdul Hamid

Member (Non-Independent Nan-Executive)

Jean, Paul, Dominique, Louis Drouffe (ceased to be a
member w.e.f. 1 July 2018)

Member (Non-Independent Non-Executive)

Tan Sri Dato’ Mohd Ghazali Bin Mohd Yusoff

Member (Independent Non-Executive)

Chong Kwai Ying (Ms) (appointed w.e.f. 25 January
2018)

Member (Independent Non-Executive)
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.
In consideration of the right candidate for appointment to the Board, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee fakes into account the required mix of skills, experience and other core
competencies that is necessary to enable the Group and Company to achieve its corporate
objectives and fuffill its fiduciary responsibilities. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for the annual review of the effectiveness of the Board and individual Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee functions on the Terms of Reference approved by
the Board. The principal duties and responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

are:

i)

vii)
viii)

Support the board in carrying out its functions in the following matters concerning the board,
senior management and company secretary:

a. Appointment and removals

b. Composition

c. Performance evaluation and development; and

d. Fit and proper assessment;

as set out in the relevant guidelines/policies issued by Bank Negara Malaysia and legislations.
Make recommendations to the Board on the selection and appointment of non-executive
Directors and the Chief Executive Officer;

Review the effectiveness of the Board, the Chairman and Directors, Board Committees and
performance of the Chief Executive Officer;

Consider the required competencies of new Directors having regard to the mix of skills,
experience and other qualities of existing Directors;

Establish a mechanism for the review of the performance of the Board, the Chairman and
Directors and the Board Committees;

Ensure that an appropriate process for the orientation and induction of new Directors is carried
out and that the process reflects the background and experience of each new Director,;
Review the Board and senior executive succession plans;

Support the Board in actively overseeing the design and operation of the financial institution’s
remuneration system as set out in paragraph 19 of the Corporate Governance guidelines
issued by Bank Negara Malaysia as detailed in the attached Appendix;

Periodically review the remuneration of Directors on the Board, particularly on whether
remuneration remains appropriate to each Director’s contribution, taking into account the level
of expertise, commitment and responsibilities undertaken; and

Perform other activities according to the application requirements in the guidelines from Bank
Negara Malaysia.
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)

The number of meetings atiended by each member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Name of Directors No. of Attendance
Jeneral (B} Tan Sri Date’ Seri Abdul Rahman Bin Abdul Hamid 5/6

Jean, Paul, Dominique, Louis Drouffe (ceased to be a member w.e.f. 1 33

July 2018)

Tan Sri Dato’ Mohd Ghazali Bin Mohd Yusoff 6/6

Chong Kwai Ying (Ms) (appointed w.e.f. 25 January 2018) 6/6
Mazhairul Jamaludin (appointed w.e.f. 13 February 201 8)‘ 6/6

In the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board has a good mix of skills
and experiences appropriate for the business of the Group and of the Company.

Risk Management Committee

The members of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

Chong Kwai Ying (Ms) (appointed w.e.f. 25
January 2018)

Jeneral (B) Tan Sri Dato' Seri Abdul Rahman Bin
Abdul Hamid

Jean, Paul, Dominique, Louis Drouffe {ceased to
be a member w.e.f. 1 July 2018)

Tan Sri Dato’ Mohd Ghazali Bin Mohd Yusoff Member (Independent Non-Executive)

Chairman (Independent Non-Executive)

Member (Non-Independent Non-Executive)

Member (Non-Independent Non-Executive)

Mazhairul Jamaludin (appointed w.e.f. 13
February 2018)

Member (Independent Non-Executive)

The Risk Management Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director and
constantly reviews the risk factors of the Group and Company to ensure risks at all levels are
managed effectively. It will also review the Group’s and the Company’s risk management policies,
action plans and evaluate the adequacy of overall risk management policies and procedures.

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

)] Support the Board in meeting the expectations on risk management as set out in Bank Negara
Malaysia's (BNM) policy document on Risk Governance;
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Risk Management Committee (continued)

i}

ii)

iv)

v)
vi)
vii)
viii)
ix)
X)
Xi)
Xii)

In assisting the implementation of a sound remuneration system, examine whether incentives
provided by the remuneration system take into consideration risks, capital, liquidity and the
likelihood and timing of earnings, without prejudice to the tasks of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee;

Review and recommend risk management strategies, policies and risk tolerance for the
Board's approval;

Review and assess the adequacy of risk management policies, and framework for identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling risks as well as the extent to which these are operating

effectively;

Ensure adequate infrastructure, resources and systems are in place for effective risk
management;

Ensure that senior management have the requisite skills, experience and competencies in risk
management;

Review the management pericdic reports on risk exposure, risk portfolio composition and risk
management activities;

Monitor compliance to related risk management standards and policies;

Review the risk portfolio and monitor the risk exposure against limits and tolerance level;
Recommend or take action as appropriate in relation to mitigating the key risks identified;
Provide constructive challenge to senier management; and

Perform other activities according to the applicable requirements in the guidelines from Bank
Negara Malaysia.

The number of meetings attended by each member of the Risk Management Committee during the
financial year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Name of Directors No. of Attendance
Jeneral (B) Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Abdul Rahman Bin Abdul Hamid 3/4
Jean, Paul, Dominique, Louis Drouffe {ceased to be a member w.e.f. 1
7
July 2018)
Tan Sri Dato’ Mohd Ghazali Bin Mohd Yusoff 414
Chong Kwai Ying (Ms) (appointed w.e.f. 25 January 2018) 4/4
Mazhairul Jamaludin (appointed w.e.f. 13 February 2018) 4/4

10
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Investment Committee

The members of the Investment Committee are as follows:

Chairman {(Executive Director) {(w.e.f. 1 July

Jean, Paul, Dominique, Louis Drouffe 2018)

Chong Kwai Ying (Ms) (appointed w.e.f. 25 . .
January 2018) Member (Independent Non-Executive)
Mazhairul Jamaludin {appointed w.e.f. 13 ) .
February 2018) Member (Independent Non-Executive)

The Investment Committee is chaired by a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director (w.e.f. 1 July
2018 Executive Director). The Committee is responsible to review and approve the strategies
recommended by the Local Management Investment Committee as well as to establish investment
objectives, policies and guidelines for the insurance funds. The Investment Committee discusses
investment strategies, asset allocation to monitor and evaluate the performance of the assets, as
well as review the portfolio performance against benchmarks. The Investment Committee also
ensures that the investment managerment of the insurance funds complies with relevant authorities’
guidelines and internal investment mandates.

The number of meetings attended by each member of the Investment Committee during the financial
year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Name of Directors No. of Attendance
Jean, Paul, Dominigue, Louis Drouffe 6/6
Chong Kwai Ying (Ms) {appointed w.e.f. 25 January 2018) 6/6
Mazhairul Jamaludin (appointed w.e.f. 13 February 2018) 6/6

11
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Management Accountability

Organisational Structure

The organisation structure of the Group and of the Company depicts clear lines of reporting
responsibility and authority for all levels of staff of the Group and of the Company. Authority Is
delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Committee for the
implementation of strategy and management of the Group and of the Company. The Group and
Company has in place a well-documented crganisational structure, allocation of duties and
responsibilities for all of its employees.

Communication

To support an effective flow of information within the Group and Company and to ensure that
important information reaches the appropriate personnel in a timely manner, the Group and
Company has in place the following practices:

- documentation of important policies and procedures in the form of operating manuals/workflows;

- regulatory guidelines, circulars and resolutions available in common IT folders for ease of
reference; and

- regular meetings to discuss issues of common concern.

Corporate Independence

The Group and the Company has complied with the requirements of BNM’s Guidelines on Related
Party Transactions {BNM/RH/GL-018-8) in respect of all its related party undertakings. Necessary
disclosures were made to the Board and where required, the Board's prior approval for the
fransactions has also been obtained.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The control framework with three lines of defense has been designed to ensure that it operates to
systematically identify, measure, manage and control the risks that the Group and the Company
may face.

As first line of defense, Management and staff have primary responsibility for establishing and
maintaining an effective control environment, identifying and managing the risks inherent in the
products, services and activities in their scope and designing, implementing, maintaining, monitoring,
evaluating and reporting on the Group and the Company’s internal control system in accordance
with the risk strategy and policies on internal control as approved by the Board of Directors.

Second line is the Risk Management function and Compliance function is responsible for supporting
the management in the risk and control management and for regular independent challenge and
verification of the design and operating effectiveness of the control environment.

The Third line is the Internal Audit function that performs an assessment of the risk and governance
processes on a periodic basis to provide independent assurance on the effectiveness of the system
of internal control.

Senior management and the Board of Directors collectively have responsibility for establishing the

organization’s objectives, defining high-level strategies to achieve those objectives, and establishing
governance structures to best manage risk.

12
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

The Board recognises the importance of having in place a risk management framework to identify
principal risks and to implement appropriate controls to manage such risks as an integral part of the
Group’s and of the Company's operations.

The Group’s and the Company's key internal control processes include the following:

Public Accountability

The Group and the Company complies with the provisions relating to policies under Section 128,
Section 130, Schedule 8 and Schedule 10 of the Financial Services Act, 2013. Each member of the
staff and agency force is also required to adhere to Life Insurance Association of Malaysia's Code
of Ethics and Conduct when dealing with customers.

Members of the public are aware of avenues for appeal against the Group and Company's practices
or decisions. A policy contract issued to any policy owner contains a written disclosure alerting them
on the existence of the Ombudsmen for Financial Services ("OFS”). In addition, notices containing
the same information are exhibited in the Head Office and all the Group and Company's branches.
The Group and Company's letter to any claimant on the rejection of a claim also includes similar
information for appeal to OFS.

Financial Reporting

Due care and diligence is exercised by the Group and the Company in ensuring compliance with the
requirements of statutory reporting to BNM and the accuracy of information contained in the reports
submitted to BNM as well as the maintenance of appropriate accounting records. The external
auditors are appointed according to the provision of the Financial Services Act, 2013, They provide
an independent opinion that the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
provisions of the Companies Act 2016, so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the financial year then ended.

13
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DIRECTCRS' BENEFITS

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Group and
Company is a party, being arrangements with the object or objects of enabling Directors of the Group
and Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Group and Company or any cther body corporate other than the share options granted pursuant to
the Employee Share Option Scheme ("ESOS") of AFFIN Bank Berhad, the entity which has joint
control over the Company.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive
any benefit (other than the benefits shown under Directors’ Remuneration) by reason of a contract
made by the Group and Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which
the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest.
INDEMNITY TO DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

During the financial year, there is no indemnity coverage and insurance premium paid for the
Directors and certain officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

None of the other Directors in office at the end of the financial year held any interest in shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Affin Bank Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia as its financial holding
company.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Details of auditors’ remuneration are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

14
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AUDITORS
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), have expressed their

willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution dated 21 March 2019.

- oMle—pum

JENERAL (B) TAN SRI DATO’ SERI TAN SRI DATO’ MOHD GHAZALL
ABDUL RAHMAN BIN ABDUL HAMID BIN MCHD YUSOFF
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur

15
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

We, Jeneral (B} Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Abdul Rahman Bin Abdul Hamid and Tan Sri Dato’ Mohd Ghazali
Bin Mohd Yusoff, two of the Directors of AXA AFFIN Life Insurance Berhad, state that, in the opinion
of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 21 to 108 are drawn up so as to give a
trie and fair view of the financial position of the Group and Company as at 31 December 2018 and
financial performance of the Group and Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2018
in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, international Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with thelr resolution dated 21 March 2019.

/ Qﬂ,@lﬂi

JENERAL (B) TAN SRI DATQ’ SERI TAN SRI DATO' MOHD GHAZALI
ABDUL RAHMAN BIN ABDUL HAMID BIN MOHD YUSOFF
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur

STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 251(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

[, Wong Wei Win, being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of AXA AFFIN
Life Insurance Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on
pages 21 to 108 are in my opinion correct, and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously
believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutery Declarations Act, 1960.

e

WONG WEI WIN

o 'No W.275
« Datin Hajah Raihela Wanchik
. 1-1-2019
31-12-2021

COMMISSIONHR FOR

5 SUITE C-5.9
LOKC LEVEL 7
MENARA UNCANG EMAS
500 KO CFEYEW 15
<o) KUALA Lumpyr

LI o ¥ X Y e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

(Company No. 723739-W)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of AXA Affin Life Insurance Berhad (“the Company”) and its
subsidiary (“the Group”) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2018, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the
financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

What we have audited

We have audited the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, which comprise the
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018 of the Group and of the Company, and the
statements of profit or loss, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equilty and
statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of signiticant accounting policies, as set out on pages
210 108.

Bagis for opinjon

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence and other ethical responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws {on
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws
and the IESBA Code.

.....................................................................................................................

PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), Chartered Accountants, Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan
Rakyat, Kuale Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwc.com/my
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

(Company No. 723739-W)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of
the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD (CONTINUED)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

(Company No. 723739-W)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on
auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the andit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

)] Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

(Company No. 723739-W)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

(63)] Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the
Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of

the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

» . * N
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOFPERS PLT JAYARAJAN A/L U. RATHINASAMY
LLPo014401-LCA & AF 1146 02059/06/2020 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
21 March 2019
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

ASSETS

Property and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets
Investments
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Fair value through profit
or loss financial assets
Loans and receivables

Reinsurance assets
Insurance receivables
Other receivables

Current tax assets
Deferred tax assets

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY, POLICYHOLDERS'
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

Share capital
Accumulated losses
Available-for-sale reserve

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance claims liabilities
Insurance payables
Reinsurance payables
Other payables

Other financial liability

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY,

POLICYHOLDERS'
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

Group Company

Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

5 3,089 1,580 3,089 1,580

6 249 255 249 255

7 106,248 104,551 106,248 104,551

8 1,684,531 1,558,769 1,719,846 1,574,831
1,139,056 1,073,547 1,175,357 1,091,735
471,194 393,829 471,194 393,829

74,281 91,393 73,295 89,267

10 32,404 33,200 32,404 33,200
11 14,841 15,534 14,841 15,534
12 4157 3,578 4,157 3,578
4,078 4,458 4,078 4,458

17 9,455 7,452 9,455 4,568
110,070 51,393 54,443 34,035
1,969,122 1,780,770 1,948,810 1,776,590

13 398,000 398,000 398,000 398,000
(100,254) (92,146) (101,092) (95,312)

14 11,661 12,253 11,661 12,540
309,407 318,107 308,569 315,228

15 1,412,469 1,254,427 1,412,469 1,254,427
16 31,723 22,189 31,723 22,189

18(a) 43,728 63,911 43,728 63,911
18(b) 10,524 8,097 10,524 8,097
19 142,261 113,922 141,797 112,738
19,010 117 - -

1,659,715 1,462,663 1,640,241 1,461,362
1,969,122 1,780,770 1,948,810 1,776,590

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Company No.
723739 (W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Note

Gross premiums
Premiums ceded to reinsurers

Net premiums

Reinsurance commission income

Investment income 20
Net realised gains 21
Net fair value gains 22
Other operating income 23(a)

Other income

Gross benefits and claims paid

Claims ceded to reinsurers

Gross change in insurance
contract liabilities

Changes in insurance contract
liabilities ceded to reinsurers

Net claims
Net realised loss 21
Net fair value loss 22
Commission and agency

expenses
Management expenses 24

Other operating expenses 23(b)

Other expenses

Loss before taxation
Tax expense attributable
to policyholders and unitholders

Loss before taxation attributable
fo Shareholders

Taxation
Tax expense attributable
to policyhelders and unitholders

Tax income attributable
to Shareholders 25

Net loss for the financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'0C00 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
463,377 490,380 463,377 490,380
(27,236) (23,365) (27,2386) (23,365)
436,141 467,015 436,141 467,015
1,724 1,333 1,724 1,333
62,643 61,040 67,115 58,165
4,152 11,251 534 9,290
920 12,235 920 12,235
3,201 1,409 3,201 1,400
72,640 87,268 73,494 82,432
(205,486) (203,445) (205,486) (203,445)
14,961 17,528 14,961 17,528
(170,971) {243,882) {170,971) (243,882)
(94) 1,342 (94) 1,342
{361,590) (428,457) (361,590) (428,457)
(2,091) - (2,091) -
(16,853) - (16,853) -
(50,335) (54,802) (50,335) (54,902)
(82,789) (87,428) (81,368) (85,773)
(2,501) (2,400) (2,501) (2,400)
(154,569) (144,730) (1953,148) {143,075)
(7,378) (18,904) (5,103) (22,085)
{1,462) (3,600) (1,462) (3,600)
(8,840) (22,504) {6,565) (25,685)
(730) 1,247 (677) 1,262
1,462 3,600 1,462 3,600
732 4,847 785 4,862
(8,108) (17,657) (5,780) (20,823)
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
Net loss for the financial year
attributable to:
-Owner of the Company (8,291) (17,661) (5,780) (20,823)
-Unitholders 183 4 - -
(8,108) (17,657) (5,780) {20,823)
Basic loss per share (sen) 26 (2.04) (4.76) (1.45) (5.61)
Net loss for the financial year (8,108) {17,657) (5,780) (20,823)
Other comprehensive
income/(loss):
ltems that may be subseguently
reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair value changes on
. available-for-sale financial assets:
Revaluation (10,022) 15,737 (16,255) 18,908
Transfer to profit or loss
upon disposal (2,936) 2,035 126 2,035
Gross fair value changes (12,958) 17,772 {16,129) 20,943
Deferred taxation (Note 17) {1,440) 985 1,444 {1,899)
Net fair value changes (14,398) 18,757 (14,685) 19,044
Change in insurance contract
liabilities arising from
unrealised net fair value
changes (Note 15) 13,806 (14,45Q) 13,806 (14,450)
Other comprehensive
(loss)income for the
financial year, net of tax (592) 4,307 (879) 4,594
Total comprehensive loss
for the financial year (8,700) {13,350) {6,659) (16,229)
Total comprehensive loss
attributable to:
-Owner of the Company (7,704) {13,362) (6,659) (16,229)
-Unitholders (996) 12 - -
(8,700) (13,350) (6,659) (16,229)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
23
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Company No.
723738 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Group Company
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash flows generated from
operating activities 27 152,866 131,998 166,614 135,023
Proceeds from disposal
of investments 427,710 389,332 310,625 347,394
Purchase of investments (601,345) (623,752) (502,394) (598,803)
Dividend income received 26,635 18,505 21,828 15,540
Interest income received 46,903 43,987 45,377 43,543
Income tax paid (3,795) (3,469) (3,739) (3,454)
Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities 48,974 (43,399) 28,311 (60,757)
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property
and equipment (2,659) {1,068) (2,659) (1,069)
Purchase of intangible assets (5,244) (3,839) (5,244) (3,839)
Proceeds from creation of units 17,718 - - -
Payment for cancellation of units {112) - - -
Net cash used in from
investing activities 9,703 (4,908) (7,903) (4,908)
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Issuance of shares - 30,000 - 30,000
Net cash generated from
financing activities - 30,000 - 30,000
Net increasef/(decrease)
in cash and cash equivalents 58,677 (18,307) 20,408 (35,665)
Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January 51,393 69,700 34,035 69,700
Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December 110,070 51,393 54,443 34,035
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

Group Company
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Cash and cash equivalents
comprised of:

Cash and bank balances 43,359 29,330 43,337 29,035
Fixed and call deposits with

maturity of less than three
months 66,711 22,083 11,106 5,000

110,070 51,393 54,443 34,035

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Group and Company are principally engaged in the underwriting of life insurance business,
including investment-linked business. There have been no significant changes in the nature of this
principal activity during the financial year,

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The
registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at 8 Floor, Chulan Tower,
3, Jalan Conlay, 50450 Kuala Lumpur.

The financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with
their resolution on 21 March 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Group and Company have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except as disclosed in this summary of significant accounting policies, and comply with
the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards ("MFRS"), International Financial Reporting Standards
and the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial pesition only when there is a legally enforceable right fo offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or fo realise the assets and setile the liability
simultaneously. Income and expense will not be offset in the statement of profit or loss unless required
or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting
policies of the Company.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the MFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported financial year. It also requires Directors to
exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Group’s and the Company's accounting
policies. Although these estimates are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM”} and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (RM'000) except when otherwise indicated.
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Company No.

723739

w

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Standards, amendments to published standards and inferpretations that are effective

The Group and Company have applied the following amendments for the first time for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018:

MFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’

MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ {effective from 1 January 2018) will replace MFRS 139
‘Financial Instruments: Reccgnition and Measurement’.

MFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model in MFRS 132 and
establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost,
fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive income
("OCI"). The basis of classification depends on the entity's business model and the cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are always
measured at fair value through profit or loss with an irrevocable option at inception to
present changes in fair value in OCI (provided the instrument is not held for trading). A
debt instrument is measured at amortised cost only if the entity is holding it to collect
contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent principal and interest.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the MFRS 139 requirements. These include
amortised cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of embedded
derivatives. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for
financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income rather than in profit or loss, unless this creates
an accounting mismatch.

MFRS 9 introduces an expected credit loss model on impairment that replaces the
incurred loss impairment model used in MFRS 139. The expected credit loss model is
forward-looking and eliminates the need for a trigger event te have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.

Amendments to MFRS 4 - Applying MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ with MFRS 4
‘Insurance Contracts’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

The amendments allow entities to avoid temporary volatility in profit or loss that might
result from adopting MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ before the forthcoming new
insurance contracts standard. This is because certain financial assets have to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss under MFRS &; whereas, under MFRS
‘Insurance Caontracts’, the related liabilities from insurance contracts are often measured
on amortised cost basis.

The amendments provide 2 different approaches for entities: (i} a temporary exemption
from MFRS 2 for entities that meet specific requirements; and (i) the overlay approach.
Both approaches are optional.

The temporary exemption enables eligible entities to defer the implementation date of
MFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2021 at the latest. An entity may
apply the temporary exemption from MFRS 9 if its activities are predominantly connected
with insurance whilst the overlay approach allows an entity to adjust profit or loss for
eligible financial assets by removing any accounting volatility to other comprehensive
income that may arise from applying MFRS 9.
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Standards, amendmenis to published standards and interpretations that are effective

(continued)

*  Amendments to MFRS 4 — Applying MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ with MFRS 4

‘Insurance Contracts' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)
{continued)

An entity can apply the temporary exemption from MFRS 9 from annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. An entity may start applying the overlay approach when it
applies MFRS 9 for the first time.

The Group and Company's business activity are predominately insurance and hence,
qualifies for the temporary exemption approach. Consequently, management has decided
to apply the temporary exemption from MFRS 9 from its annual period beginning 1
January 2018 and will adopt MFRS 9 for its annual period beginning 1 January 2021.

The Group and Company have not fully assessed the impact of MFRS 9 on its financial
statements.

In order to compare with entities applying MFRS 9, the amendments require deferring
entities to disclose additional information including contractual cash flows characteristics
and credit exposure of the financial assets. The following table presents the Group’s and
the Company’s financial assets by their contractual cash flows characteristics, which
indicate if they are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding

(“SPPI"):
Financial
assets with All other
SPPI cash financial
flows assets Total*
Fair value as at 31 December 2018 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Group
Investments (Note 8) 778,575 831,675 1,610,250
Malaysian Government Securities 188,325 94,163 282,488
Debt securities unquoted in Malaysia 590,250 166,092 756,342
Investment-linked funds - 18,648 18,648
Equity securities quoted in Malaysia - 182,325 182,325
Equity securities quoted outside Malaysia - 19,405 19,405
Unit and property trust funds quoted
in Malaysia - 351,042 351,042
Loans and receivables 52,230 - 52,230
Other receivables 3,986 - 3,086
Cash and bank balances 110,070 - 110,070
1,305,342 471,194 1,776,536
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective
(continued)

*  Amendments to MFRS 4 — Applying MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ with MFRS 4
‘Insurance Contracts’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

(continued)
Financial
assets with All other
SPPI cash financial
flows assets Total*
Fair value as at 31 December 2018 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Company
Investments (Note 8) 778,575 867,976 1,646,551
Malaysian Government Securities 188,325 94,163 282,488
Debt securities unquoted in Malaysia 590,250 166,092 756,342
Investment-linked funds - 18,648 18,648
Equity securities quoted in Malaysia - 93,543 93,5643
Equity securities quoted outside Malaysia - 19,405 19,405
Unit and property trust funds quoted
in Malaysia - 476,125 476,125
Leans and receivables 51,244 - 51,244
Other receivables 3,986 - 3,986
Cash and bank balances 54,443 - 54,443
1,285,030 471,184 1,756,224

* Insurance receivahles, reinsurance assets, policy loans, automatic premium loans have been
excluded from the above assessment as they will be under the scope of MFRS 17, Insurance
Contracts. Other than the financial assets listed in the table above and the assets that are within
the scope of MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, all other assets in the statement of financial position
are non-financial assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Standards, amendments to published standards and interprefations that are effective

(continued)

*  Amendments toc MFRS 4 — Applying MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ with MFRS 4

‘Insurance Contracts’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial
assets with All other
SPPI cash financial
flows assets Total
Changes in fair value during the year RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Group
Investments
Malaysian Government Securities 441 (521) (80)
Debt securities ungquoted in Malaysia 5,607 1,385 6,992
Equity securities quoted in Malaysia - (27,837) {27,837)
Equity securities quoted outside Malaysia - 496 4386
Unit and property trust funds quoted
in Malaysia - (8,463) (8,463)
6,048 {(34,940) (28,892)
Company
Investments
Malaysian Government Securities 441 {521) (80)
Debt securities unquoted in Malaysia 5,607 1,385 6,992
Equity securities quoted in Malaysia - {31,008) {31,008)
Equity securities quoted outside Malaysia - 496 496
Unit and property trust funds quoted
in Malaysia - (8,463) (8,463)
6,048 (38,111) (32,063)
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{a) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective
{continued)

e Amendments to MFRS 4 — Applying MFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ with MFRS 4
‘Insurance Contracts’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)
{continued)

Financial assets with SPPI cash flows*

Past due
Gross carrying amounts Investment and
under MFRS 139 by AAA AA A Non-rated linked impaired Total
credit risk rating grades RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
Group
Amortised Cost
Loans and receivables 13,654 37,227 - 1,349 - - 52,230
Other receivables - - - 1,582 127 2277 3,986
Cash and bank balances 71,653 13,450 20 1,993 22,954 - 110,070
85,307 50,677 20 4,924 23,081 2277 166,286
Company
Amonrtised Caost
Loans and receivables 12,842 37,227 - 1,175 - - 51,244
Other receivables - - - 1,582 127 2,277 3,986
Cash and bank balances 16,026 13,450 20 1,993 22,954 - 54,443
28,868 50,677 20 4,750 23,081 2277 109,673

*  Credit risk of these financial assets is considered low for the purpose of MFRS 9.

*  MFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

¢+ Amendments to MFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment — Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions’

* Amendments to MFRS 140 'Investment Property — Transfers of Investment Property’

¢ |C Interpretation 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’

* Annual Improvemenis to MFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle: MFRS 128 ‘Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures’

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the current period or any prior period
and is not likely to affect future periods.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that
are applicable to the Group and Company but not vet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective
for financial year beginning after 1 January 2018. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group and Company, except
the following set out below:

MFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective from 1 January 2019} supersedes MFRS 117 ‘Leases’ and
the related interpretations.

Under MFRS 16, a lease is a contract (or part of a contract) that conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

MFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases by the lessee as either finance leases (on
balance sheet) or operating leases (off balance sheet). MFRS 16 requires a lessee to
recognise a “right-of-use” of the underlying asset and a lease liability reflecting future
lease payments for most leases.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated in accordance with the principle in MFRS 116
‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and the lease liability is accreted over time with interest
expense recognised in statement of profit or loss.

For lessors, MFRS 16 retains most of the requirements in MFRS 117. Lessors continue
to classify all leases as either operating leases or finance leases and account for them
differently.

The Group and Company is in the midst of finalising the initial assessment of the potential
impact on its financial statements. The impact of applying MFRS 16 on the financial
statements in the perfod of initial application will depend on future economic conditions,
including the borrowing rate, the composition of the lease portfolio at that date, the latest
assessment of whether the Group and Company will exercise any lease renewal options,
and the exient to which the Group and Company choose to use practical expedients and
recognition exemptions. The most significant impact identified is that the Group and
Company will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases. As at 31
December 2018, the Group and Company’s future minimum lease payments under non-
canceliable operating leases amounting to RM1,615,000 on an undiscounted basis (see
note 28). The Group and Company will adopt MFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, using the
simplified transition appreoach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior
to first adoption. Right-cf-use assets for properiy leases will be measured on transition as
if the new rules had always been applied. All other right-of-use assets will be measured
at the amount of the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease
expenses).

IC Interpretation 23 "‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective 1 January 2019)
provides guidance on how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax
assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment.

If an entity concludes that it is not probable that the tax treatment will be accepted by the
tax authority, the effect of the tax uncertainty should be included in the period when such
determination is made. An entity shall measure the effect of uncertainty using the method
which best predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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(b) Standards, amendments to published standards_and interpretations to existing standards that

are applicable to the Group and Company but not vet effective (continued)

IC Interpretation 23 will be applied retrospectively.

* Amendments to MFRS 128 ‘Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
(effective from 1 January 2019) clarify that an entity should apply MFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’ (including the impairment requirements) to long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture, which are in substance form part of the entity's net investment,
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to oceur in the foreseeable future.

In addition, such long-term interest are subject to loss allocation and impairment
requirements in MFRS 128,

The amendments shall be applied retrospectively.

* Amendments to MFRS 9 'Prepayment features with negative compensation’ (effective 1
January 2019) allow companies to measure some prepayable financial assets with
negative compensation at amortised cost. Negative compensation arises where the
contractual terms permit the borrower to prepay the instrument before its contractual
maturity, but the prepayment amount could be less than the unpaid amounts of principal
and interest. To qualify for amortised cost measurement, the negative compensation must
be reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract, and the asset must be
held within a 'held to collect’ business model.

The amendments will be applied retrospectively.
*  Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle;

s  Amendments to MFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' (effective from 1 January 2019)
clarify that when a party obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, the
acquirer should account the transaction as a business combination achieved in
stages. Accordingly it should remeasure its previously held interest in the joint
operation (rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities) at fair value on the
acquisition date.

e Amendments to MFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ (effective from 1 January 2019) clarify
that when a party obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the
party should not remeasure its previously held interest in the joint operation.

¢  Amendments to MFRS 112 ‘Income Taxes' {effective from 1 January 2019} clarify
that where income tax consequences of dividends on financial instruments classified
as equity is recognised (either in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity)
depends on where the past transactions that generated distributable profits were
recognised. Accordingly, the tax consequences are recognised in statement of profit
or loss when an entity determines payments on such instruments are distribution of
profits {that is, dividends). Tax on dividend should not be recognised in equity merely
on the basis that it is related to a distribution to owners.
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{b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that

are applicable to the Group and Company but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to MFRS 123 '‘Borrowing Costs’ (effective from 1 January 2019) clarify
that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready
for its intended use or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings.

Amendments to MFRS 119 'Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement’ (effective 1
January 2019) requires an entity to use the updated actuarial assumptions from
remeasurement of its net defined benefit liability or asset arising from plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, to determine current service cost and net interest for the
remaining period after the change to the plan. The amendments will be applied
prospectively.

MFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ (effective from 1 January 2021) replaces MFRS 4
‘Insurance Contracts’,

MFRS 17 applies to insurance contracts issued, to all reinsurance contracts and to
investment contracts with discretionary participating features if an entity also issues
insurance contracts. For fixed-fee service contracts whose primary purpose is the
provision of services, an entity has an accounting policy choice to account for them in
accordance with either MFRS 17 or MFRS 15 'Revenue’. An entity is allowed to account
financial guarantee contracts in accordance with MFRS 17 if the entity has asserted
explicitly that it regarded them as insurance confracts. Insurance contracts, (other than
reinsurance) where the entity is the policyholder are not within the scope of MFRS 17.
Embedded derivatives and distinct investment and service components should be
‘unbundled’” and accounted for separately in accordance with the related MFRSs.
Voluntary unbundling of other components is prohibited.

MFRS 17 requires a current measurement model where estimates are remeasured at
each reporting period. The measurement is based on the building blocks of discounted,
probability-weighted cash flows, a risk adjustment and a contractual service margin
("C8M) representing the unearned profit of the contract. An entity has a policy choice to
recognise the impact of changes in discount rates and other assumptions that related to
financial risks either in statement of profit or loss or in other comprehensive income.

Alternative measurement models are provided for the different insurance coverages:

a) Simplified Premium Allocation Approach if the insurance coverage period is a year
or less;

b) Variable Fee Approach should be applied for insurance contracts that specify a link
between payments to the policyholder and the returns on the underlying items.

The requirements of MFRS 17 align the presentation of revenue with other industries.
Revenue is allocated to the periods in propartion to the value of the expected coverage
and other services that the insurer provides in the period, and claims are presented when
incurred. Investment components are excluded from revenue and claims.

Insurers are required to disclose information about amounts, judgements and risks arising
from insurance contracts.

The Group and the Company have not fully assessed the impact of MFRS 17 on its
financial statements.
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(a)

(b)

Property and equipment

All items of property and equipment are initially recorded at costs. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged fo the statement of profit or loss during the financial year in which they are
incurred.

Subsequent to recognition, property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Land and buildings which are substantially occupied by the Group and Company for its
operations, are classified under property and equipment.

Property and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis to write off the cost of the
assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, summarised as follows:

Leasehold land and building - Qver the remaining period of the
lease or 50 years whichever is shorter

Office equipments - Syears

Furniture and fittings - Syears

Computer equipments - 3vyears

Renovations - bSyears

Motor vehicles - Svyears

Residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
date of the statement of financial position. At each date of the statement of financial position,
the Group and Company assesses whether there is any indication of impairment. if such
indications exist, an analysis is performed to assess whether the carrying amount of the asset
is fully recoverable. A write down is made if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable
amount as set out in Note 3(e) on the accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets.

Anitem of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the net disposal proceeds with their carrying amounts, and are credited or
charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties, comprising principally land and office buildings, are held for long term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the Group and
Company.

Investment properties are initially stated at cost including related and incidental expenditure
incurred. After initial recognition, investment property is stated at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Investment property is depreciated on the straight line
basis to allocate the cost to its residual values over its estimated useful lives of 50 years,
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(b)

(c)

Investment properties (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Investment property is derecognised either when it has been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Gains or [osses on disposals are determined by comparing net
disposal proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in statement of profit or loss.
Intangible assets

Goodwill arising on acquisition of life insurance business

Goodwill arising on acquisition of life insurance business represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition of the life insurance business over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
recognised at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of life insurance business is
included in the statement of financial position as intangible assets.

Goodwill on acquisition of life insurance business is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment loss on goodwill on acquisition of life
insurance business is not reversed as set out in Note 3(e) on the accounting policy for
impairment of non-financial assets.

Computer software

Software development costs are capitalised where it is expected that future economic benefits
will be derived and are amortised over a period between three to five years. Software
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable

returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity.
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(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated using the acquisition method of accounting. Under the
acquisition method of accounting, subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group and are de-consolidated from the date that conirol ceases.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired at the date of acquisition is reflected
as goodwill. See accounting policy Note 3(c) to the financial statements on goodwill. If the
cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the gain is recognised directly in the statement of profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. This may indicate an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary which is the difference between net disposal
proceeds and the Group's share of its net assets as of the date of disposal including the
cumulative amount of any exchange differences that relate to the subsidiary, is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss atiributable to the parent.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation, are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount
of the assels exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.,

A subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as reversal of the
previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset
that would have been determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised. The reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss immediately.
Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.
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(f)

Financial assets

The Group and Company classifies its investments into financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS") and loans and receivables
{"LAR"). The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired
or originated. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial
recognition.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date which
is the date that the Company commits to purchase or seli the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets require delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

EVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTFPL") include financial assets held for
trading ("HFT") and those designated at FVTPL at inception.

Investments are classified as HFT if they are acquired or incurred principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or it is part of a portfolio of identified securities
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short
term profit taking.

For investments designated at FVTPL at inception, the following criteria must be met:

. the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on a different basis, or

. the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or
both which are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

Investments held under the investment-linked business and fixed income securities held
under the non-participating life business are designated at FVTPL at inception.

These FVTPL financial assets are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these FVTPL financial assets are re-measured at fair value. Fair value changes
and realised gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Interest income from FVTPL financial assets calculated using the effective interest method,
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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(f)

{9)

(h)

Financial assets {continued)
AFS

Investments classified as AFS are financial assets that are not classified as FVTPL, held-to-
maturity or LAR. AFS financial assets are initially recorded at fair value. After initial
measurement, the AFS financial assets are re-measured at fair value.

Interest income from AFS financial assets calculated using the effective interest method, is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Any gains and losses arising from the change in
fair value adjustments, net of deferred tax, are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, except for Impairment losses. When the AFS financial assets are derecognised, the
cumulative fair value gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are transferred to the statement of profit or loss as nef realised gains on AFS financial assets.

LAR

LAR are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus all
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition. After initial measurement, loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the effective yield method, less allowance
for impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
financial assets are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Fair value of financial instruments
The basis of estimation of fair values of financial instruments is as follows:
(i) Malaysian Government Securities are based on the indicative market prices;

(i) Unquoted debt securities are based on the indicative market prices obtained from
financial managers;

(i) Quoted equity securities of corporations, quoted unit and property frust funds,
investment-linked funds and structured investments are based on quoted market
prices; and

(iv) The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities with a maturity period
of less than one year are assumed to approximate their fair values.

Impairment of financial insfruments

The Group and Company assesses at each date of the statement of financial position whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset {a 'loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
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(h) Impairment of financial instruments {continued)

(i

(iii)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial asset carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group and Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or nof, the asset is included in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is or continues fo be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment. The impairment assessment is performed as of
the date of the statement of financial position.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed hy adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised
cost at the reversal date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on securities carried at cost (e.g.
equity instruments or which there is no active market or whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured) has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for similar securities.
Such impairment losses shall not be reversed.

Financial assets carried at fair value

In the case of AFS financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the financial asset below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for AFS financial assets, the cumulative loss,
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as AFS
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. Impairment losses previously recognised in the
profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit or loss.
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(i)

()

(k)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Group and Coempany does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statemenis. A contingent liability is a possible cbligation that arises from past
events whose existence will be confirmed by uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Group and Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also
arises in the extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because
it cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group and Company. The
Group and Company does not recognise a contingent asset but discloses its existence where
inflows of economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.

Equity instruments

Ordinary share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of new shares are recognised in equity, net of tax.

Dividends on ordinary share capital

Dividends are recognised as liabilities when the obligation {o pay is established in which the
dividends are declared and approved by the Company's shareholders. No provision is made
for a proposed dividend.

Product classification
The Group and Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

An insurance contract is a contract under which the Group and Company (the insurer) has
accepted significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to
compensate the policyhelders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event)
adversely affects the policyholders. For purpose of MFRS 4 on ‘Insurance Contracts’, the
Group and Company defines insurance risk to be significant when the benefits payable on the
occurrence of the insured event are 5% or more than the benefits payable if the insured event
did not occur at any one point of the insurance contract. Based on this definition, all policy
contracts issued by the Group and Company, including investment-linked contracts, are
considered insurance contracts as at the date of the statement of financial position. The
investment components of the investment-linked contracts are not unbundled.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract

for the remainder of its life-time, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this
period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expire.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

Product classification (continued)

Surpluses in the non-discretionary participating feature ('DPF') fund arising during the year
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and the unallocated surplus where
the amount of surplus allocation to shareholders has yet to be determined by the end of the
financial year is held in equity.

Participating life insurance contracts contain DPF. This feature entitles the policyholders to
receive non-guaranteed henefits which could vary according to the investment and operating
results of the Group and Company. The Group and Company does not recognise the
guaranteed component separately from the DPF; hence the whole contract is presented within
the insurance contract liahilities in the financial statements.

The Group and Cempany are net required to un-bundle any insurance contract as the current
accounting policy recognises all insurance premiums, claims and policy benefit payments,
expenses and valuation of fuiure benefit payments through the profit or loss.

The Group and Company does not need to separately measure at fair value, the policyholder's
option to surrender an insurance contract for a fixed amount or for an amount based on fixed
amount and an interest rate.

Options and guarantees inherent in some insurance contracts which are closely related to the
host contract issued by the Group and Company are not required to be separated and
measured at fair value.

The Group and Company does not adopt a policy of deferring acquisition costs for its
insurance contracts.

Reinsurance

The Group and Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its
businesses.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the
outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the reinsurer's policies and are
in accordance with the related reinsurance contracts.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group and Company from its obligations
to policyholders. Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and
assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently
when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs when
there is objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the
reinsurance asset that the Group and Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due
under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the
amounts that the Group and Company will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is
recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

The gross insurance liabilities will be reduced by the appropriate reinsurance assets for the
relevant policies.
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("

(m)

Reinsurance (continued)

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable
are estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are
extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Life insurance underwriting results

The surplus transferable from the Life fund to the Shareholders’ fund is based on the surplus
determined by an annual actuarial valuation of the long-term liabilities to policyholders, made
in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Services Act, 2013 and the RBC Framework
by the Group’s and the Company’'s Appointed Actuary. In the event the actuarial valuation
indicates that a transfer is required from the Shareholder’s fund, the transfer from the profit or
loss to the Life fund is made in the financial year of the actuarial valuation.

Gross premiums

Premium income includes premium recognised in the Life fund and the Investment-linked
funds.

Gross premiums of the Life Fund are recognised as soon as the amount of the premiums can
be reliably measured. First premium is recognised from inception date and subsequent
premium is recognised when it is due.

At the end of the financial year, all due premiums are accounted for to the extent that they
can be reliably measured and it is still within the grace period allowed for payment or covered
by the cash surrender value of the policies.

Premium income of the Investment-linked funds includes the net creation of units which
represents premiums paid by the policyholders as payment for a new contract or subsequent
payments to increase the amount of that contract. Net creation of units is recognised on the
receipt basis.

Reinsurance premiums

Gross reinsurance premiums are recognised as an expense when payable or on the date on
which the policy is effective.

Benefits and claims

Benefits, claims and settlement costs that are incurred during the financial year are
recognised when a claimable even occurs and/or the insurer is notified.

Recoveries on reinsurance claims are accounted for in the same financial year as the original
claims are recognised.
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(m)

(n)

Life insurance underwriting results (continued)
Benefits and claims (continued)

Benefits and claims for claims arising on life insurance policies including seftlement costs,
less reinsurance recoveries, are accounted for using the case basis method and for this
purpose, the benefits and claims payable under a life insurance policy are recognised as
follows:

o maturity and other policy benefit payments due on specified dates are treated as claims
payable on the due dates;

« death, surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as claims payable on
the date of receipt of intimation of death of the assured or occurrence of contingency
covered; and

» benefits payable under the Investment-linked funds are in respect of net cancellation of
units and are recognised as surrender.

Commission and agency expenses

Commission and agency expenses, which are costs directly incurred in securing premium on
insurance policies, net of income derived from reinsurers in the course of ceding of premium
to reinsurers, are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the financial year in which they
are incurred.

Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables are measured at amortised
cost, using the effective yield method.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Group and
Company reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and
recognises that impairment less in the statement of profit or loss. The Group and Company
gathers the objective evidence that an insurance receivable is impaired using the same
process adopted for financial assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment loss is
calculated under the same method used for financial assets carried at amortised cost as set
out in Note 3(h) to the financial statements.
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{o) Insurance contract liabilities

Acluarial liabilities

Actuarial liabilities for benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future are recognised
when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged.

The valuation of life insurance contract liabilities is determined according to BNM’s Risk-
Based Capital Framework as follows:

(i)

(i)

i)

Participating fund insurance contract liabilities

Participating plans are valued using a prospective actuarial valuation based on the
sum of the present value of future guaranteed and appropriate level of non-
guaranteed benefits, and the expected future management and distribution expenses,
less the present value of fuiure gross considerations arising from the policy
discounted at the appropriate risk discount rate. The participating life insurance
liability is taken as the higher of the guaranteed henefit liabilities or the total benefit
liabilities.

Non-participating fund insurance contract liabilities

The liability of non-pariicipating life plans are valued using a prospective aciuarial
valuation based on the sum of the present value of future benefits, and the expected
future management and distribution expenses, less the present value of future gross
considerations arising from the policy discounted at the appropriate risk discount rate.

Investment-linked fund insurance contract liabilities

The liability is the sum of:

¢ The unit reserves, calculated as the value of the underlying assets backing the
units relating to the policy; and

« The non-unit reserves, calculated as the expected future payments arising from
the policy (other than those relating to the unit reserves), including any expenses
that the insurer expects to incur in administering the policies and settling the
relevant claims and any provision made for any adverse deviation from the
expected experience, less expected future receipts arising from the policy {other
than those relating to the unit reserves).

The liability is derecognised when the coniract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.
At each reporting date, an assessment is made of whether the recognised insurance

contract liabilities are adequate, net of present value of in-force business ('PVIF') by
using an existing liability adequacy test.
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(o)

{nsurance contract liabilities {continued)

Unallocated surplus

Surpluses of contracts under the Participating life fund are attributable to policyholders and
shareholders, and the amount and timing of distribution to both the policyholders and
shargholders are determined by an actuarial valuation of the long ferm liabilities to
policyholders at the date of the statement of financial position and is made in accordance with
the provisions of the Financial Services Act, 2013 and related regulations by the Company’s
Appointed Actuary.

Unallocated surplus of the Participating life fund, where the amounts of surplus are vet to be
allocated or distributed to either the policyholders or shareholders by the end of the financial
year, are held within the insurance contract liabilities.

Surpluses in the Non-Participating fund arising during the financial year are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and the unallocated surplus where the amount of surplus allocation
to the shareholders has yet to be determined by the end of the financial year is held in equity.

Fair value adjustment on avaifable-for-sale financial asseis

Where unrealised gains or losses arising from available-for-sale financial assets, the
adjustment to the insurance contract liabilities equal to the effect that the realisation of those
gains or losses at the end of the reporting period would have on those liabilities is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

Net assef value attributable to unitholders

The unit liability of investment-linked policy is equal to the net asset value of the Investment-
linked funds, which represents net premiums received and investment returns credited to the
policy less deduction for mortality, morbidity costs and expense charges.
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(p)

Other revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income from asset-held-for sale properties are recognised on a straight line basis over
the term of the lease.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group and Company reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans and receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Other interest income including the amount of amortisation of premiums and accretion of
discounts is recognised on a time proportion basis that takes into account the effective yield
of the assets.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group and Company’s right to receive payment is
established.

Realised gains and losses on investments

Realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss on investments include
gains and losses on financial assets and investment properties. Gains and losses on the sale
of financial assets are calculated as the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
original or amortised cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.
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(q)

Taxation

Income tax on the statement of profit or loss for the financial year comprises current and
deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable
profits for the financial year and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at
the reporting date. Current tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the amounts attributed to assets or liabilities for tax purposes and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses can
be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the date of the statement of financial position and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax assets is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss except when it arises from a
transaction which is recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the deferred
tax is also charged or credited to other comprehensive income.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group and Company have a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amouni can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
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(s)

(t)

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Wages, salaries and bonuses are recognised as expenses in the financial year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the Group and Company.

Defined contribution plan

The Group and Company's contributions to the Employees’ Provident Fund, the national
defined contribution plan, are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss in
the financial year to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group and
Company has no further payment obligations.

Foreign currencies

Functional and preseniation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Group and Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional
currency’). The financial statements of the Group and Company are presented in Ringgit
Malaysia, which is the Group and Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the setflement of such transactions and from the translation at financial year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Qperations denominated in functional currency other than Ringait Malaysia

The results and financial position of the Investment-linked funds with functional currency that
is different from the presentation currency of the Group and Company are translated into the
presentafion currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for the statement of financial position are translated at the closing
rate at the date of the statement of financial position;

(ii) Income and expenses for the statement of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rate (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates), in which case
income and expenses are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the
transactions; and

{iii) All resuliing exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of
equity under the foreign currency translation reserve except for the investment-linked
husiness, where such exchange differences are reported as part of the insurance
confract liabilities.
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(u)

(v)

(w)

Insurance and other payables

Insurance payables and other payables are recognised when due and measured on initial
recognition at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances and fixed and call deposits with
original maturities of three months or less. It excludes deposits which are held for investment
purpose.

The Group and Company classifies cash flows from the acquisition and disposal of financial
assets as operating cash flows, as the purchases are funded from cash flows asscciated with
the origination of insurance contracts, net of cash flows for payments of benefits and claims
incurred for insurance contracts, which are respectively treated under the operating activities.

Operating leases

Leases of assets where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under the operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of profit or loss
on the straight line basis over the lease period.

The up-front payments made for leasehold land represent prepaid lease rentals are amortised
on straight-line basis over the lease term.

When an cperating lease is terminated before the lease period expired, any payment required

to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continuously evaluated, and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group and Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined below.

Life insurance contract liabilities

The Group and Company makes estimates, assumptions and judgements in determining the
reported amount of policy liabilities. These estimates, assumptions and judgements are the
best estimates of fuiure experience, based on historical experience, trends and other factors.
They are regutarly reviewed by the Appointed Actuary to ensure that they remain relevant and
valid.

Actuarial assumptions used for valuation of liabilities take into account of the expected future
market and economic conditions as well as expected mortality, morbidity, lapse and surrender,
risk free rate, expenses and claim experience. The data used to formulate these assumptions
come from a variety of sources including review of market conditions, the Group and
Company's internal experience with regard to its policies and broader industry experience.

Deferred tax assels

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the exient that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based on the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies.

Assumptions about generation of future taxable profits depend on management’s estimates
of future cash flows. These depend on estimates of future premiums, loss ratios, operating
expenses, capital expenditure and other capital management transactions. Judgement is also
required about application of income tax legislation. These judgements and assumptions are
subject to risks and uncertainty, hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will
alter expectations, which may impact the amount of deferred tax assets recognised in the
statement of financial position and the amount of unrecognised tax losses and unrecognised
temporary differences.

53



Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group and Company assesses the impairment of goodwill on an annual basis in
accordance with its accounting policy in Note 3(e) to the financial statements. The recoverable
amount of the goadwill has been determined based on the value of expected future new
business, taking infc account of expected future expense overruns. The key assumptions
used in the assessment are disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.

(b) Critical judgement in applying the entity's accounting policies
In determining and applying the accounting policies, judgement is often required in respect of
items where the choice of specific policy could materially affect the reported results and

financial position of the Group and Company. However, the Directors are of the opinion that
there are currently no accounting policies which require significant judgement to be exercised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
GROUP AND COMPANY

Cost

At 1 January 2017
Additions

At 31 December 2017
Additions

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2017
Charge for the financial year (Note 24)

At 31 December 2017
Charge for the financial year (Note 24)

At 31 December 2018

Net book value

31 December 2018
31 December 2017

Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

RM000

300

300

300

51

249
255

The fair value of the investment property is RM450,000, which was determined based on valuation
performed by an external independent valuer using direct comparison method of valuation as at 31

December 2018.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill arising on acquisition
of life insurance business
At 1 January/31 December

Computer software
At 1 January
Additions
Amortisation charge
for the financial year (Note 24)

At 31 December

Total

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
99,120 99,120 09,120 99,120
5,431 4,594 5,431 4,594
5,244 3,839 5,244 3,839
(3,547) (3,002) (3,547) (3,002)
7,128 5,431 7,128 5,431
106,248 104,551 106,248 104,551
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a)

The Group and Company tests goodwill on acquisition of life insurance business for
impairment annually in accordance with its accounting policy. More regular reviews are
performed if events indicate that this is necessary.

Goodwill is allecated to cash-generating units ("CGU”) for the purpose of impairment testing.
A CGU represents the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable operational cash
flows. The CGU represents the life insurance business of the Group and Company.

In testing whether impairment is necessary, the recoverable amount of the goodwill has been
determined based on value of expected future new business. Management's judgement is
involved in estimating the value of expected future new husiness. The key assumptions taken
into account in preparing the valuation are detailed as follows:

{i) A multiple of 20 on new business value is used to compute the total value of expected
future new business;

(i)  Expense inflation rate is 3%;

(i) Risk discount rate is 13%;

(iv) Tax rate of 8% for Life fund and 24% for Shareholders’ fund;

At 31 December 2018, the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying value of goodwill.

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions

Based on the assessment of the recoverable amount for the CGU, the Group and Company
does not expect that any reasonable change in the abovementioned key assumptions will
cause the carrying amount of the goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount, therefore
resulting in impairment of goodwill.

Intangible assets comprised of computer application software and software costs which are
developed or acquired to meet the unique requirements of the Company.
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INVESTMENTS

The financial assets are summarised by categories as follows:

Available-for-sale ("AFS")
financial assets

Fair value through profit
or loss ("FVTPL") financial
assets — designated upon
initial recognition

Loans and receivables ("LAR")

The following financial assets
are expected to be realised
after 12 months:

AFS financial assets
FVTPL financial assets
— designated upon

initial recognition
LAR

(a)

(b)

{c)

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
1,139,056 1,073,547 1,175,357 1,091,735
471,194 393,829 471,194 393,829
74,281 91,393 73,295 89,267
1,684,531 1,558,769 1,719,846 1,574,831
739,504 680,258 739,504 680,258
237,480 223,389 237,480 223,389
3 3 - 3
976,987 Q903,650 976,984 903,650
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INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following financial assets are expected to be realised after 12 months:

(a)

AFS financial assets

At fair value

Malaysian Government Securities

Debt securities unquoted in Malaysia
Investment-linked funds

Equity securities quoted in Malaysia

Unit and property trust funds quoted in Malaysia

At fair value

Malaysian Government Securities

Debt securities unquoted in Malaysia

Equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Investment-linked funds

Unit and property trust funds quoted in Malaysia

59

Group

2018 2017

RM RM
188,325 145,782
590,250 567,019
18,648 19,525
131,217 136,532
210,616 204,689
1,139,056 1,073,547
Company

2018 2017

RM RM
188,325 145,782
590,250 567,019
42,435 40,099
18,648 19,5625
335,699 319,310
1,175,357 1,091,735
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INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

FVTPL financial assets — designated upon initial recognition

At fair value

Malaysian Government Securities
Equity securities quoted in Malaysia

Equity securities quoted outside Malaysia

Debt securities unquoted in Malaysia

Unit and property trust funds quoted in Malaysia

LAR

At amortised cost

Policy loans

Mortgage loans

Fixed and call deposits
Dividend receivables
Amount due from brokers

Policy loans
Mortgage loans
Fixed and call deposits
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Group and Company

2018 2017
RM RM
94,163 97,051
51,108 57,260
19,405 16,198
166,092 129,204
140,426 94,116
471,194 303,829
Group

2018 2017
RM RM
22,051 20,329
- 3
51,244 68,935
174 159
812 1,967
74,281 91,393
Company

2018 2017
RM RM
22,051 20,329
- 3
51,244 68,935
73,295 89,267
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INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Carrying values of financial assets
AFS FVTPL LAR Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
GROUP
At 1 January 2017 894,996 298,146 74,835 1,267,977
Purchases 398,507 225,245 - 623,752
Disposals (240,075) (137,997) - (378,072)
Fair value losses recorded in:
Profit or loss (Note 22) - 10,368 - 10,368
Other comprehensive income 17,772 - - 17,772
Write back of impairment 1,867 - - 1,867
Increase in fixed and call deposits - - 11,298 11,298
increase in loans - - 2,021 2,021
Increase in dividend receivable - - 159 159
Increase in amount due from broker - - 1,967 1,967
Movement in accrued interests 480 47 1,113 1,640
Elimination of fair value losses of
Shareholders’ fund investment
in investment-linked funds
{Note 15) - (1,980) - (1,980)
At 31 December 2017 1,073,547 393,829 9,393 1,558,769
Purchases 300,613 300,732 - 601,345
Disposals (215,214) (209,076) - (424,290)
Fair value losses recorded in:
Profit or loss (Note 22) - (15,933) - (15,933)
Other comprehensive income (12,958) - - (12,958)
Movement transferred to Other
comprehensive income (8,127) - - (8,127)
Decrease in fixed and call deposits - - {17,764) (17,764)
Increase in loans - - 620 620
Increase in dividend receivable - - 15 15
Increase in amount due from broker - - (1,155) {1,155)
Movement in accrued interests 1,185 765 1,172 3,132
Elimination of fair value losses of
Shareholders’ fund investment
in investment-linked funds
{Note 15) - 877 - 877
At 31 December 2018 1,139,056 471,194 1,684,531

74,281
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Carrying values of financial assets (continued)
AFS EVTPL LAR Total
RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM000
COMPANY
At 1 January 2017 894,996 298,146 74,835 1,267,977
Purchases 373,558 225,245 - 598,803
Disposals (200,109) (137,997) - (338,106)
Fair value gains recorded in:
Profit or loss {(Note 22) - 10,368 - 10,368
Other comprehensive income 20,943 - - 20,943
Write back of impairment 1,867 - - 1,867
Increase in fixed and call deposits - - 11,288 11,288
Increase in loans - - 2,021 2,021
Movement in accrued interests 480 47 1,113 1,640
Elimination of fair value losses of
Shareholders’ fund investment
in investment-linked funds {Note 15) - {1,280) - (1,880)
At 31 December 2017 1,091,735 393,829 89,267 1,574,831
Purchases 201,662 300,732 - 502,394
Disposals {103,106) . (209,076) - (312,182)
Fair value losses recorded in:
Profit or loss (Note 22) - {15,933) - {15,933)
Other comprehensive income (16,129) - - (16,129)
Decrease in fixed and call deposits - - (17,764) (17,764)
Increase in loans - - 620 620
Movement in accrued interests 1,195 765 1,172 3,132
Elimination of fair value losses of
Shareholders’ fund investment
in investment-linked funds
{Note 15) - 877 - 877
At 31 December 2018 1,175,357 471,194 73,295 1,719,846
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INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
(e) Fair values of financial assets

The following table shows the financial assets recorded at fair value analysed by the
different basis of fair values as follows:

AFS FVTPL Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
GROUP
31 December 2018
Level 1 - Quoted market price 360,481 210,939 571,420
Level 2 - Market observable inpuis 778,575 260,255 1,038,830
1,139,056 471,194 1,610,250
31 December 2017
Level 1 - Quoted market price 360,746 167,574 528,320
Level 2 - Market observable inputs 712,801 226,255 939,056
1,073,547 393,829 1,467,376
AFS FVTPL Total
RM’000 RM'000 RM'0Q0
COMPANY
31 December 2018
Level 1 - Quoted market price 306,782 210,939 607,721
Level 2 - Market observable inputs 778,575 260,255 1,038,830
1,175,357 471,194 1,646,551
31 December 2017
Level 1 - Quoted market price 378,934 167,574 546,508
Level 2 - Market ohservable inputs 712,801 226,255 939,056

1,091,735 393,829 1,485,564

The Group and Company categorise its fair value measurements according to a three-level
hierarchy. The hierarchy prioritises the inputs used by the Group and Company’s valuation
techniques for determining the fair value of the financial assets.
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INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
(e) Fair values of financial assets (continued)

A level is assigned to each fair value measurement based on the lowest level input significant
to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The three-level hierarchy is defined as follows:

Level 1 - Fair value measurements that reflect unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities that the Group and Company has the ability to
access at the measurement date. Valuations are based on quoted prices reflecting
market transactions involving assets or liabilities identical to those being
measured.

Level 2 - Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices Included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
These include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, -
guoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in inactive markets, inputs
that are observable that are not prices (such as interest rates, credit risks, etc) and
inputs that are derived from or corroborated by cbservable market data.

Level 3 - Fair value measurements using significant non market observable inputs. These

include valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived using data, some or all
of which is not market observable, including assumptions about risk.

CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITY

During the financial year, the Company acquired units in a wholesale unit trust fund which is
established in Malaysia and managed by an external fund manager. Details of the investment in the
wholesale unit trust fund are as follow;

% of ownership interest

Name of fund Principal activities held by the Company
2018 2017
Affin Hwang Invest in equity, unlisted securities 89.4% 99.9%

Wholesale Equity Fund warrants, units or shares in collective
Investment scheme, deposits and
Money market instruments

The Company has determined that its investment in the wholesale unit trust fund amounting to
RM168,356,887 (2017: RM154,715,326) as investment in structured entity (“investee fund”). The
investee fund is managed by Affin Hwang Asset Management Berhad.

The Company holds 89.4% (2017: 99.9%) of units in Affin Hwang Wholesale Equity Fund and thus
has control over the investee fund. The Company is exposed to, or has rights to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

This investee fund is classified as AFS financial asset and the change in fair value of the investee
fund is included in the statement of other comprehensive income in the Company’s separate financial
statements. :
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITY {CONTINUED)

The Company's exposure to investments in the investee fund is disclosed below.

2018 2017

RM RM

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 131,218 136,531
Cash and cash equivalents 55,627 17,358
Dividend receivables 174 159
Amount due from brokers 312 1,967
Payables {464) (1,183)
187,367 154,832

The Company’s maximum exposure o loss from its interests in the investee fund is equal to the fair
value of its investment in the investee fund.

As the Company has control over the investee fund which is considered controlled structured entity,
the structured entity is consolidated at Group level. The underlying assets of the structured entity have
taken duly consolidated as shown in the financial statements.

REINSURANCE ASSETS
2018 - 2017
GROUP AND COMPANY RM'000 RM'000
Reinsurance of insurance contracts:
- Insurance contract liabilities (Note 15) 27,816 27,910
- Insurance claims liabilities (Note 16) 4,588 5,290
32,404 33,200
2018 2017
GROUP AND COMPANY RM'000 RM'000
Receivable within 12 months 5,759 6,465
Receivable after 12 months 26,645 26,735
32,404 33,200

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate the fair values as at the date of the statement of
financial position.
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INSURANCE RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
GROUP AND COMPANY RM’000 RM'000
Due premiums including agents, brokers and
co-insurers balances 14,841 15,534

Receivable within 12 months 14,841 15,534
The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate the fair values as at the date of the statement of
financial position.

The following table shows the assets and liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar arrangements at each financial year end:

2018 2017
RM'000 RM’000
Gross amounts of recognised financial assets 15,266 16,688
Less: Gross amounts of recognised financial liabilities
set off in the statement of financial position (425) (1,154)
Net amounts of financial assets presented
in the statement of financial position 14,841 15,534
OTHER RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
GROUP AND COMPANY RM'000 RM000
Subscription to LIAM shares 2,064 2,064
Malaysian Institute of Insurance bonds 100 100
Deposits 1,002 1,000
Amount due from a related party {(Note 30(a)) - -
Dividend income due and receivable 414 129
Other receivables 2,683 4,010
Prepayments 171 220
6,434 7,523
Allowance for impairment (Note 33(a)) (2,277) (3,945)
4,157 3,578
Receivable within 12 months 1,993 414
Receivable after 12 months 2,164 3,164

4,157 3,578
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OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The amount due from a related party is unsecured, interest free and Is recelvable within one month
after the invoice date. The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate the fair values as at the

13

14

date of the statement of financial position.

SHARE CAPITAL

2018 2017
Number of Nominal Number Nominal
shares value shares value
‘000 RM000 ‘000 RM'000
GROUP AND COMPANY
Issued and fully paid-up:
At 1 January - Ordinary shares 398,000 398,000 368,000 368,000
Add : Issuance of shares during
the financial year - - 30,000 30,000
At 31 December — Ordinary shares 398,000 398,000 398,000 388,000
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE RESERVE
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
Gross fair value gains 14,545 12,497 14,545 15,668
Deferred tax (2,884) (244) (2,884) (3,128)
Net fair value gains 11,661 12,253 11,661 12,540

The available-for-sale reserve is in respect of fair value gains or losses on available-for-sale financial
assets, net of deferred tax, held by the Non-participating life fund, Shareholders’ fund and Investment

Linked Operating fund.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

GROUP AND COMPANY

2018 2017
Reinsu- Reinsu-
Gross rance Net Gross rance Net

RM°0GO RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000

Actuarial liabilities 1,118,903 (27,816) 1,091,087 1,011,938 (27,910) 984,028
Unaliocated surplus 19,695 - 19,695 10,084 - 10,084
Available-for-sale reserve  (3,628) - (3,628) 10,178 - 10,178
Net asset value

attributable to

unitholders 296,147 - 296,147 241,752 - 241,752

1,431,117 (27.816) 1,403,301 1,273,952 (27,910) 1,246,042

Less:
Elimination of '

Shareholders’ Fund
investment in
investment linked funds (18,648} - {18,648) {19,525)

(19,525)

1,412,469 (27.816) 1,384,653 1,254,427 (27,910) 1,226,517

Current 342,129 (1,171) 340,958 296,061 (1,175) 204,886
Non-current 1,070,340 {26,645) 1,043,695 958,366 (26,735) 931,631

1,412,469 (27,816) 1,384,653 1,254,427 (27,910) 1,226,517

The insurance contract liabilities and movements therein are further analysed as follows:

2018
Gross Reinsurance Net
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
At 1 January 2018 1,254,427 (27,910) 1,226,517
Reserve movement for inforce policies 82,967 2,358 85,325
Reserve for new business 44,942 (3,966) 40,976
Change in discount rate (2,517) 219 (2,298)
Change in other assumptions 2,920 1,542 4,462
Change in valuation methodology (417} - (417)
Adjustment of asset share (7,779) - (7,779)
Other changes in reserving (13,151) (59) {13,210)
Movement in unallocated surplus 9,611 - 9,611
Movement in net asset value attributable to unitholders 54,395 - 54,395
170,971 94 171,085
Elimination of fair value gains from Shareholders'
fund investment in investment-linked funds (Note 8(d)) 877 - 877
Available-for-sale fair value adjustment {13,806) - (13,8086)
At 31 December 2018 1,412,469 (27,816) 1,384,653
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

2017

At 1 January 2017

Reserve movement for inforce policies

Reserve for new business

Change in discount rate

Change in other assumptions

Change in valuation methodolcgy

Adjustment of asset share

Other changes in reserving

Movement in unallocated surplus

Movement in net asset value atfributable to unitholders

Elimination of fair value gains from Shareholders’
fund investment in investment-linked funds (Note 8(d})
Available-for-sale fair value adjustment

At 31 December 2017

INSURANCE CLAIMS LIABILITIES

GROUP AND COMPANY

Insurance claims liabilities — gross of reinsurance
Reinsurance assets (Note 10)

Insurance claims liabilities — net of reinsurance

Payable within 12 months

Gross Reinsurance Nei
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
998,075 (26,568) 971,507
103,831 2,672 106,503

28,090 (3,131) 24,959

6,216 (400) 5,816

3,804 (68) 3,736

1,937 - 1,937

8,363 - 8,363

(1,388) {415) {1,803)

(7,404) - (7,404)
100,433 - 100,433
243,882 (1,342) 242,540

(1,980) = (1,980)

14,450 - 14,450
1,254,427 (27,910) 1,226,517
2018 2017

RM'000 RM'000

31,723 22,189
{4,588) (5,290)

27,135 16,899

31,723 22,189

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate the fair values as at the date of the statement of

financial position.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Deferred tax liabilities (2,725) (2,537) (2,725) (5,421)
Deferred tax assets 12,180 9,989 12,180 9,989
9,455 7,452 9,455 4,568
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 7,452 1,407 4,568 1,407
{Charged)/credited to profit or loss:
{Note 25)
FVTPL financial assets 1,216 (529) 1,216 (529)
Property and equipment (166) {10) {166) {10)
Impairment of AFS financial assets (66) - (66) -
Unutilised tax losses 2,257 5,765 2,257 5,765
Overprovision in prior year 202 (166) 202 (166)
3,443 5,060 3,443 5,060
Credited to other comprehensive income:
AFS financial assets (1,440) 985 1,444 (1,899)
At 31 December 9,455 7,452 9,455 4,568

The composition of deferred tax assets/liabilities before and after appropriate offsetting is as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Subject to income tax:
Deferred tax assets: (before offsetting)
Impairment of AFS financial assets - 66 - 66
Unutilised tax losses 12,180 9,923 12,180 9,923
12,180 9,989 12,180 9,989
Offsetting (2,725) (2,537) (2,725) (5,421)
Deferred tax asset (after offsetting) 9,455 7,452 9,455 4,568

Deferred fax assetfs and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority.

The Company has an unutilised tax losses of RM 24.0 miilion as at 31 December 2018 (2017: RM24.1
million), for which no deferred tax assets are recognized in the statement of financial position.

The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities:

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Property and equipment (513) (347) (513) (347)
AFS financial assets (2,536) {1,294) (2,532) (4,217)
FVTPL financial assets 324 {896) 320 {857)
(2,725) (2,537) (2,725) (5,421)

Offsetting 2,725 2,537 2,725 5,421

Deferred tax liabilities (after offsetting) - - - -

INSURANCE PAYABLES AND REINSURANCE PAYABLES

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'Q00

{a) Insurance payables due to
agents and insureds 43,728 63,911 43,728 63,911

{(b) Reinsurance payables due
fo reinsurers 10,524 8,097 10,5624 8,097
Payable within 12 months 41,519 28,338 41,519 28,338
Payable after 12 months 12,733 43,670 12,733 43,670
54,252 72,008 54,252 72,008

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate the fair values as at the date of the statement of
financial position.

The following fable shows the assets and liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar arrangements at each financial year end:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000

Gross amounts of recognised financial
liabilities 10,849 9,251 10,949 9,251
Less: Gross amounts of recognised
financial assets set off in the
statement of financial position (425) (1,154) (425) {1,154)

Net amounts of financial liabilities
presented in the statement
of financial position 10,524 8,097 10,524 8,097
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OTHER PAYABLES
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RM'0Q0 RM'000 RMO0D0
Dividend payable 97,712 77,474 97,712 77,474
Other payables and accrued
expenses 26,312 27,933 25,848 26,749
Amount due to a related party
(Note 30 (a)) 18,237 8,615 18,237 8,515
142,261 113,922 141,797 112,738
Payable within 12 months 140,627 109,002 140,163 107,818
Payable after 12 months 1,634 4,920 1,634 4,920
142,261 113,922 141,797 112,738

The amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment terms.

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate the fair values as at the date of the statement of
financial position.

INVESTMENT INCOME

2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000
GROUP
Investment property
Investment property expenses (3) (3)
AFS financial assets
Dividend income from equity securities quoted in Malaysia 5,549 12,191
Interest income from debt securities 34,358 31,534
Accretion of discounts 240 730
EVTPL financial assets — designated upon initial recognition
Dividend income from equity securities quoted in Malaysia 10,151 5,421
Dividend income from equity securities quoted
outside Malaysia 576 381
Interest income from debt securities 12,064 10,092
Accretion of discounts/(amortisation of premiums) (34) (58)
Loans and receivables
Fixed and call deposits 1,547 1,801
Policy loans and mortgage loans 1,698 1,529
Investment expenses (3,503) (2,578)
62,643 61,040
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INVESTMENT INCOME (CONTINUED)

COMPANY

Investment property
investment property expenses

AFS financial assets
Dividend income from equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Interest income from debt securities
Accretion of discounts

FVTPL financial assets — designated upon initial recognition
Dividend income from equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Dividend income from equity securities quoted

outside Malaysia
Interest income from debt securities
Accretion of discounts/(amortisation of premiums)

Loans and receivables
Fixed and call deposits
Palicy loans and mortgage loans

Investment expenses

NET REALISED GAIN/{(LOSS)

GROUP
NET REALISED GAINS

AFS financial assets
Realised gain on equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Realised gain on debt securities

FVTPL financial assets — designated upon initial recognition
Realised (loss)/gain on equity securities quoted in Malaysia

Realised (loss)/gain on debt securities
Realised gain on structured investments quoted
outside Malaysia

73

2018
RM'000

(3)

13,676
34,358
240

7,860
576

10,700
(34)

1,647
1,698

(3,503)

67,115

3,618
212

322

4,152

(3)

9,760
31,090
730

5,421
381

10,092
(58)

1,801
1,529

(2,578)

58,165

2017
RM'000

6,541

293

4,337
74

11,251
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NET REALISED GAIN/(L.LOSS) (CONTINUED)

NET REALISED LOSS

AFS financial_assets
Realised gain on equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Realised gain on debt securities

FVTPL financial assets — designated upon initial recognition
Realised (loss)/gain on equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Realised (loss)/gain on debt securities
Realised gain on structured investments quoted

outside Malaysia

COMPANY
NET REALISED GAINS
AFS financial assets

Realised gain on equity securities guoted in Malaysia
Realised gain on debt securities

EVTPL financial assets — designated upon initial recognition
Realised {loss)/ gain on equity securities quoted in Malaysia

Realised gain on debt securities
Realised gain on structured investments quoted
outside Malaysia

NET REALISED LOSS

AFS financial assets
Realised gain on equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Realised gain on debt securities

FVTPL financial assets — designated upgn initial recognition
Realised (lossY gain on equity securities quoted in Malaysia

Realised gain on debt securities
Realised gain on structured investments quoted
outside Malaysia

74

2018
RM’000

(2,054)
(37}

(2,091)

534

534

2018
RM'000

(2,054)
(37}

(2,091)

2017
RM'000

4,580
293

4,337
74

9,280

2017
RM'000



22

23

Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

NET FAIR VALUE GAIN/(LOSS)

GROUP AND COMPANY

AFS financial asseis
Write back of impairment

FVTPL financial assets — designated upon initial recognition

Fair value (loss)/gain on equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Fair value gain on debt securities
Fair value gain on structured investments quoted

outside Malaysia

Net fair value gains

AFS financial assets
Write back of impairment

FVTPL financial assets — designated upon initial recognition
Fair value (loss)/gain on equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Fair value gain on debt securities
Fair value gain on structured investments quoted

outside Malaysia

Net fair value loss

OTHER OPERATING INCOME/(EXPENSES)
GROUP AND COMPANY

(a) Other operating income
Rebate of fund management fee income

Unrealised foreign exchange gains

{b) Other operating expenses
Interest expense on future deposit funds attributable
to policyholders
Bad debts writien off
Interest penalties charge

75

920

920

(16,853)

(16,853)

2,287

3,201

(1,520)
(972)
(9

(2,501)

2017
RM’000

1,867
7,025

1,293

2,050

12,235

1,409

(2,400)

(2,400)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

Staff costs (Note (a))
Directors' remuneration:
Directors’ fees and allowances for
Non-Executive Directors (Note (b))
Salaries and other emoluments
for Executive Director {Note (b))
Management and consuliancy fees
Advertising expenses
Direct marketing expenses
IT expenses and software license fees
Bank charges and collection fees
Rental of premises

Auditors’ remuneration *:

Statutory audit

- Current financial year

- Qver accrual in respect
of prior financial year

- Non-audit services

Depreciation of property
and equipment (Note 5)

Depreciation of investment
Property (Note 6)

Amortisation of intangible
assets (Note 7)

Allowance for impairment
of other receivables (Note 33 (a))

Other expenses

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
34,042 32,355 34,042 32,355
513 717 513 717
1,167 1,883 1,167 1,883
5,111 7,823 4,530 7,551
8,209 5,786 8,209 5,786
2,324 5,746 2,324 5,746
11,627 9,630 11,627 9,639
2,390 2,833 2,380 2,833
2,621 2,631 2,621 2,631
244 219 234 212

- (70) - (70)
62 35 62 35
1,150 1,046 1,150 1,046
6 6 6 6
3,547 3,002 3,647 3,002
(1,668) 1,956 (1,668) 1,956
11,447 11,821 10,614 10,445
82,789 87,428 81,368 85,773

* there is no indemnity given or insurance effected for the auditors for both financial years.
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MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(a) Staff costs

GROUP AND COMPANY 2018 2017

RM’'000 RM'000
Salary and bonus 28,035 27,968
Defined contribution plan 3,919 3,315
QOther benefits 2,088 1,072

34,042 32,355

(b) The Directors of the Company in office during the financial year were as follows:

Non-Executive Directors

Jeneral (B) Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Abdul Rahman Bin Abdul Hamid
Tan Sri Dato’ Mohd Ghazali Bin Mohd Yusoff

Jean, Paul, Dominique, Louis Drouffe

Cheng Kwai Ying

Mazhairul Jamaludin

Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer

Loke Kah Meng (resigned as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director w.ef. 1 August
2017).

Rohit Chandrasekharan Nambiar (appointed as Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. 15 December
2017).

The aggregate amount of emoluments received and receivable by the Non-Executive
Directors of the Company during the financial year were as follows:

2018 017

GROUP AND COMPANY RM'000 RM'000
- Fees 396 435
- Meeting allowances 117 117
- Other emoluments - 165
513 717
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MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(b) The Directors of the Company in office during the financial year were as follows: (continued)

The number of Non-Executive Directors whose total remuneration received or receivable
during the financial year are analysed by the following bands:

Number of Non-Executive Directors

2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000
RM10,001 — RM100,000 2 2

RM100,001 — RM200,000 3 4

The remuneration, including benefits-in-kind, attributable to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company during the financial year amounted to RM 1,167,000 (2017: RM1,883,000).

2018 2017
GROUP AND COMPANY RM'000 RM'000
- Salary and bonus 861 1,208
- Defined contribution plan 129 181
- Other benefits 177 494
1,167 1,883
TAXATION
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Tax expense on the profit for the
financial year:
Current tax 4,179 4,080 4,126 4,065
Deferred tax (Note 17) {3,443) (5,060) (3,443) (5,060)
736 (980) 683 (995)
Overproviston in prior financial years (6) (267) (6) (267)
730 (1,247) 677 (1,262)
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income tax
rate to the effective income tax rate of the Company is as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM"000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Loss before taxation attributable

to Shareholders (8,840) (22,504) (6,565) (25,685)
Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax

rate of 24% (2017: 24%) (2,122} (5,401) {1,576) (6,184)
Non-deductible expenses for tax

purposes 1,396 821 797 1,569
Overprovision in prior financial years (6) (267) (6) {267)
Total (732) (4,847) (785) (4,862)

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share of the Group and Company are calculated by dividing the net loss for the
financial year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group and Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Net loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders (RM'000) (8,108) (17,657) (5,780) {20,823)

Weighted average number

of shares in issue ('000) 398,000 371,206 398,000 371,206
Basic loss per share (sen) (2.04) (4.76) (1.45) (5.61)

Diluted earnings per share are not presented as there is no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at the
date of the statement of financial position.
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CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM'000 RWM'000 RM'Q00 RM000
Net loss for the financial year (8,108) (17,657) (5,780) (20,823)
Non-cash items:
Taxation 730 (1,247) 677 {1,262)
Investment income (62,643) (61,040) (67,115) (58,165)
Depreciation of property
and equipment 1,150 1,046 1,150 1,046
Depreciation of investment property 6 6 6 6
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,547 3,002 3,547 3,002
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of financial assets (2,061) (11,251) 1,557 (9,290)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on FVTPL
financial assets 15,933 (10,368) 15,933 (10,368)
Write back of impairment on AFS
financial assets - (1,867) - (1,867)
(Write back)/allowance for impairment
on other receivables (1.668) 1,956 (1,668) 1,956
Changes in working capital;
Increase in loans {620) (2,021) (620) (2,021)
Decrease/(increase) in fixed
and call deposits 17,764 (11,298) 17,764 {11,298)
Decrease/{increase) in insurance
receivables 693 {356) 693 (356)
Increase in other receivables (2,119) (3,447) (2,134) (790)
Decrease/(increase) in reinsurance assets 796 (4,651) 796 (4,651)
Increase in insurance contract liabilites 170,971 239,922 170,971 239,022
Increase in insurance claims liabilities 9,534 8,091 9,534 8,091
Decrease in insurance payables (20,183) (21,854) {20,183) (21,854)
Increasef/(decrease) in reinsurance
payables 2,427 (449) 2,427 (449)
Increase in other payables 26,717 25,481 29,059 24,194
Cash flows generated from operating
activities 152,866 131,998 156,614 135,023

NON-CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The future minimum lease payments of the non-cancellable operating lease commitments are as

follows:
GROUP AND COMPANY 2018
RM’000
Not later than 1 year 937
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 678
1,615
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There are no capital commitments as at the end of the financial year (2017:Nil).

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The related parties of, and their relationships with the Group and the Company, are as follows:

Name of company
AFFIN Bank Berhad {(*AFFIN")

National Mutual International Pty Ltd ("NMI")

AXA SA.

AXA Asia

AXA Asia Regional Centre Pte Ltd

AXA Global Life SA

AXA Technology Services Asia HK Ltd
AXA Asia Pacific Holdings Ltd

AXA China Region Insurance Ltd

AXA Group Solutions Asia Limited

Gl AXA Universite

AFFIN Holdings Berhad

AFFIN Investment Bank Berhad

AFFIN Hwang Asset Management Berhad
AFFIN Moneybrokers Sdn. Bhd.

AXA AFFIN General Insurance Berhad
Boustead Holdings Berhad ("Boustead”)

Boustead Hotels and Resorts Sdn Bhd
Boustead Trave! and Services Sdn Bhd

Lembaga Tabung Angkatan Tentera ("LTAT")

Irat Hotels and Resorts Sdn Bhd
Perbadanan Perwira Harta Malaysia
Johan Ceramics Berhad

Relaticnship

Entity which has joint control over
the Company

Entity which has joint control over
the Company

Holding company of NMI

Subsidiary of AXA S A,

Subsidiary of AXA S A,

Subsidiary of AXA S.A.

Subsidiary of AXA Services SAS

Subsidiary of AXA S.A.

Subsidiary of AXA S.A.

Subsidiary of AXA Services SAS

Subsidiary of AXA S.A.

Ultimate holding corporate body of AFFIN

Subsidiary of AFFIN

Subsidiary of AFFIN Invesment Bank Bhd

Subsidiary of AFFIN

Associate of AFFIN

Entity which has significant influence
over AFFIN

Subsidiary of Boustead

Subsidiary of Boustead

Ultimate holding corporate body of
Boustead, which is a
government-linked company
of the Government of Malaysia

Subsidiary of LTAT

Subsidiary of LTAT

Subsidiary of LTAT

The Group and the Company does not have any individually or collectively significant transactions
outside the ordinary course of business with the Government of Malaysia and government related

entities.

In the normal course of business, the Group and the Company undertakes at agreed terms and prices
negotiated between the related parties, various transactions with other companies deemed related
parties by virtue of being subsidiaries of AFFIN (collectively known as AFFIN Group), subsidiaries of
Boustead (collectively known as Boustead Group}, subsidiaries of LTAT (collectively known as LTAT
Group) and subsidiaries of AXA S.A. (collectively known as AXA Group).
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(a)

The significant related party transactions entered into during the financial year and balances
as at the financial year end between the Group and Company and the related parties are set

out below.

GROUP AND COMPANY

Transactions with AFFIN Group

AFFIN Holdings Berhad

- Gross premium

- Training expenses

AFFIN Bank Berhad

- Gross premium

- Commission expenses

- Officer liability insurance

AFFIN Hwang Investment Bank Berhad
- Gross premium

AFFIN Hwang Asset Management Berhad
- Gross premium

- Fund management fee expenses
AFFIN Moneybrokers Sdn. Bhd.

- Gross premium

AXA AFFIN General Insurance Berhad
- Gross premium

Transactions with Boustead Group

Boustead Holdings Berhad

- Gross premium

Boustead Travel and Services Sdn Bhd
- Provision for travel services

Boustead Hotels and Resoris Sdn Bhd
- Provision for hotel services

82

1,270

(5.623)
(85)
294

357
(701)

22

308

(4,1286)

97
(328)

(31)

(262)

2017

RM'00

o

(69)
793
(4,404)

332

363
(615)

541

(3,036)

95
(1,051)

(73)

(1,029)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{a) The significant related party transactions entered into during the financial year and balances
as at the financial year end between the Group and the Company and the related parties are
set out below. {continued)

2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000
Transactions with LTAT Group
Irat Hotels and Resorts Sdn Bhd
- Rental of office and utility expenses {1,844) (1,907)
Perbadanan Perwira Harta Malaysia
- Gross premium 96 102
(1,748) {1,805)
Transactions with AXA Group
AXA Asia
- Reimbursements of software development costs - (3,839)
- Management and consultancy fees (1,753) (3,139)
- IT expenses and software license fees (71) (7,357)
- Undercharge for the reimbursement of software
Development in prior year (61) -
- OQvercharge for IT expenses and software license fee
in prior year 517 -
- Overcharge for management and consultancy fees
in prior year 634 -
(734) (14,335)
AXA Technology Services Asia HK Ltd
- Reimbursements of software development costs {(5,301) -
- IT expenses and software license fees {9,289) -
- SDFC for Distributor & SFDC servicing CRM (219) -
AXA Asia Pacific Holdings Ltd
- Director’s fee (110) (61)
- MDRT Convention {56) -
AXA China Region Insurance Ltd
- MDRT Convention (42} -
Gl AXA Universite
- License & online course costs (26) -
AXA Group Solutions Asia Limited
- SFDC for Distributor & SFDC servicing CRM (559) -
AXA Asia Regional Centre Pte Ltd
- Training costs - (294)
{(16,336) (14,690)
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

The significant refated party transactions entered inte during the financial year and balances
as at the financial year end between the Group and the Company and the related parties are

set out below. (continued)

2018
RM'C00
Amount due to AXA Asia included in other

payables (Note 19) 18,237

Compensation of key management personnel

201

RM'00

O~

8,515

Key management personnel represents persons with the authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group and Company either directly or

indirectly.

The key management personnel of the Group and the Company comprised of the Board of

Directors and the senior management team.

Total compensation paid and payable to the Group and Company's key management

personnel during the financial year are as follows:

2018
GROUP AND COMPANY RM’000
Salary, bonus and benefits 4,255
Defined contribution plan 620
Other benefits 308
Directors’ fees and allowances 513

5,696
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group and Company are exposed to insurance risk, investment risk, market risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and capital risk. Respeonsibility for managing the risks vests with the Group and
Company's management with reference to policies. The Company’s risk management and investment
policies are guided by the Financial Services Act, 2013 (‘'FSA’), Bank Negara Malaysia (‘BNM') Risk
Governance Policy, Risk-Based Capital ('RBC') Framework and AXA Asia Risk Management Policy.

Insurers have to comply with the FSA, including guidelines on investment limits under the Risk-Based
Capital Framework. The responsibility for formulation, establishment and approval of the Group and
Company’s investment policies rest with the Board of Directors {‘the Board’). The Board exercises
oversight on the investments to safeguard the interest of the policyholders and shareholders.

{a) Risk management framework

The Group and Company’s risk management framework (“the framework”) is adopted from
AXA Group (“the Group") risk management policy. The framework was approved by the Group
and Company's Board Risk Management Committee. The framework will undergo annual
review to reflect changes in the operating environment and changes to the Group's policies.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and approving the risk management framework and
for monitoring perforrmance against it while the management is responsible forimplementation
of the framework and ensuring the business is managed in accordance with it. The day to day
management of risk is delegated through the CEC to management supported by a central risk
management function. The management is also responsible for promoting a high performance
culture where effective risk management is embedded within the day-to-day business
activities, and is encouraged and rewarded.

Key to the framework is the concept of the “three lines of defence” for managing risk. The first
line of defence is the CEQ, senior management, managers and employee of the Group and
Company. The second line is made up of the compliance and risk functions which provide
management support and "check and balance". The second line of defence also consists of
the various management committees which are established to assist the Board and its board
committees in the monitoring and oversight responsibilities. The management committees
include the Local Management Audit & Compliance Committee (‘LMACC'), Local Risk
Committee ('LRC'), Local Management Investment Committee (‘LMIC') and Local Product
Management Committee ('LPMC’). The third line of defence consists of internal audit that
provides independent assurance.

{b) Capital management objectives, policies and approach

The capital management framework is set up to ensure that the regulatory and internal
solvency requirements of the Group and Company will be met at all times, and at the same
time, ensuring the optimal utilisation of capital.

The RBC Framework for the insurance industry came into effect from 1 January 2009. Under
the RBC Framework, insurers are required to maintain a capital adequacy level that
commensurate with their risk profiles. The minimum regulatory capital adequacy ratio is 130%.
The Group and Company also has its own Individual Target Capital Level, which is higher
than the minimum regulatory requirement fo ensure that the Group and Company could
withstand adverse economic and insurance shocks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

(b)

Capital management objectives, policies and approach (continued)

The capital structure of the Company as at 31 December 2018, as prescribed under the RBC
Framework, is shown below:

2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000
Eligible Tier 1 Capital
Share capital 398,000 398,000
Accumulated losses {101,092) (95,312)
Eligible contract liabilities 100,184 95,322
397,092 398,010
Tier 2 Capital
Available-for-sale 8,033 22,719
Amounts deducted from capital (116,105) {111,382)

Total capital available 289,020 309,347

The Company has met the minimum capital requirements specified in the RBC Framework
for the financial years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

Governance and regulatory framework

The Group and Company's governance and regulatory framework comprises the Board sub
committees which includes amongst others the Board Audit and Compliance Committee,
Board Investment Committee and the Board Risk Management Committee. These
committees’ functions are primarily to assist the Board in fulfilling its governance and oversight
responsibilities especially in the areas of managing risks, non compliance and ensuring that
the management has put in place effective controls as well as reviews of major policies.

The Board is aware that a well-defined corporate governance and regulatory framework is
beneficial only if it is adhered and internalised by all the staff. Hence, management
committees such as the LMACC, LRC, LPMC, and LMIC have been mandated to provide
management oversight on the Company's day-to-day activities and to provide timely and
periodic update to the Board/Board Committees. The Group has also supported the local
management in terms of participation in the local management committees’ meetings, sharing
of new practices, kev policies and processes.

The Board also recognises that strong governance and regulatory framework would require
proper and timely dissemination of new regulations and policies from both the Group as well
as external supervisory bodies such as BNM or LIAM. As such, when new laws and policies
are introduced, the management has the responsibility to analyse, summarise the impact of
the regulations to the Company and to promptly table this to the next available Board meeting.
Likewise these new laws are also communicated to staff via emails and through meetings. In
addition, periodic trainings and briefings on regulatory subjects are also conducted to the staff
{especially newer staff) to ensure that they are familiar with the requirements and to help
establish a strong culture of adherence.
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INSURANCE RISK

The risk under an insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty
of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, the risk is random
and therefore unpredictable.

The principal risk that the Group and Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual
claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance coniract liabilities. Such
risks are managed by adherence to established underwriting guidelines and limits as well as seeking
the appropriate reinsurance covers.

The underwriting strategy is intended to ensure that risks underwritten are well diversified in terms of
the type of risk and the level of insured benefits.

Stress testing is performed annually hy the Appointed Actuary, for endorsement by the Board and
fo be submitted to BNM. The purpose of the stress testing is to assess the solvency of the Life fund
under various scenarios according to prescribed statutory valuation basis, simulating drastic changes
in major parameters such as new bhusiness volume, interest rate environment, expense patterns,
mortality/morbidity patterns and lapse rates. Appropriate actions are taken by the management to
ensure the Company maintains a sound financial position in the long term.

The Group and Company uses reinsurance to manage its mortality and morbidity risk. The Company's
reinsurance management strategy and policy are reviewed regularly. Reinsurance arrangements are
set based on the type of risk. Retention limits for mortality risk per life for individual and group contracts
are limited to a maximum of RM250,000 and RM300,000 respectively.

Concentration of risk may arise where a particular event or series of events could significantly impact
the Company’s liabilities. Such concentrations may arise from a single insurance contract or through
a small number of related contracts, and related to the circumstances where significant liabilities could
arise.

Only reinsurers meeting a minimum credit rating are considered when deciding on which reinsurers
to reinsure the Company's risk.

The table below shows the concentration of the actuarial liabilities by class of business:

Gross Reinsurance Net
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

At 31 December 2018
Whole life 116,880 - 116,880
Term assurance 17,634 {2,569) 14,965
Endowment 763,840 - 763,840
Mortgage 135,034 (24,094) 110,940
Invesiment-linked 295,651 - 295,651
Others 85,616 (1,153) 84,463

Total 1,414,555 (27,816) 1,386,739
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The table below shows the concentration of the insurance contract liabilities by class of business:
{continued)

Gross Reinsurance Net
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

At 31 December 2017
Whole life 103,276 - 103,276
Term assurance 11,747 (1,340) 10,407
Endowment 687,069 - 687,069
Mortgage 134,003 (25,422) 108,581
Investment-linked 233,890 - 233,890
Others 75,843 {1,148) 74,695

Total 1,245,828 (27,910) 1,217,918

As all of the business are derived from Malaysia, the entire life insurance contract liabilities are in
Malaysia.

Key assumptions

Material judgement is required in determining the liahilities and in the choice of assumptions.
Assumptions in used are based on past experience, current internal data, external market indices and
benchmarks which reflect current observable market prices and other published information.
Assumptions and prudent estimates are determined at the date of valuation and no credit is taken for
possible beneficial effects of voluntary withdrawals. Assumptions are further evaluated on a
continuous basis in order to ensure realistic and reasonable valuations.

The key assumptions to which the estimation of liabilities is particularly sensitive are as follows:

Scenario Key assumption Change in assumption
1 Mortality/Morbidity +20%
2 Mortality/Morbidity -20%
3 Lapse and surrender +20%
4 Lapse and surrender -20%
5 Risk free rate +50bps
6 Risk free rate -50bps
7 Expenses +20%

The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the statement of financial position and profit or loss
of the Company are listed below by portfolio assumptions impacting gross and net actuarial liabilities.
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INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)

Sensitivities

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net actuarial liabilities, profit before tax
and equity. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate
actuarial liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had
to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are
non-linear. Sensitivity information will alsc vary according to the current economic assumptions.

Impact on Impact on Impact on

Change in gross actuarial net actuarial profit

assumptions liabilities liabilities before tax

% RM'000 RWM'000 RM000

2018
Mortality/Morbidity +20 33,092 18,978 {17,486)
Mortality/Morbidity -20 (28,829) (15,366) 13,938
Lapse and surrender rates +20 (126) 647 {1,618)
Lapse and surrender rates -20 107 (709) 1,748
Risk free rate +50bps (11,751) (10,902) 10,902
Risk free rate -50bps 14,253 12,642 {12,642)
Expenses +20 11,447 11,447 {11,447)
2017

Mortality/Morbidity +20 32,314 16,746 (15,315)
Mortality/Morbidity -20 (28,679) (13,915) 12,524
Lapse and surrender rates +20 861 1,740 {(2,683)
Lapse and surrender rates -20 (892) {1,822) 2,859

Risk free rate +50bps (10,9186) {10,071) 10,071
Risk free rate -50bps 13,633 11,934 (11,834)
Expenses +20 11,490 11,490 (11,490)

Impact
on
equity®
RM'000

(13,289)
10,594
(1,230)

1,329
8,286
(9,608)
(8,700)

(11,639)
9,518
(2,039)
2,172
7,654
(9,070)
(8,733)

* Impact on equity reflects adjustment for tax, where applicable. The methods used and significant
assumptions made for deriving sensitivity information did not change from the previous financial

year.

FINANCIAL RISKS

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due fo the inability or unwillingness of a counterparty to mest
payment obligations of principal and/or interest. The Company has a credit policy in place for
its investment funds and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

All bond investments must carry a minimum rating of A or P1 by rating agencies established
in Malaysia or by any internationally recognised rating agency as outlined in the Company's
manual of investment policies approved by the Board.
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
() Credit risk (continued)

Credit exposure

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components on the statement of
financial position. The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the
use of master netting or collateral agreements.

Life and Investment
Shareholders’ -linked
GROUP funds funds Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 31 December 2018
AFS financial assets:
MGS and debt securities 778,575 - 778,575
FVTPL financial assets —
designated at inception;
MGS and debt securities 215,098 45,157 260,255
Loans and receivables:
Policy and mortgage loans 22,051 - 22,051
Fixed and call deposits 51,244 - 51,244
Dividend receivables 174 - 174
Amount due from brokers 812 - 812
Reinsurance assetfs 32,404 - 32,404
Insurance receivables 14,841 - 14,841
Other receivables * 3,859 127 3,986
Cash and cash equivalents 87,116 22,954 110,070
1,206,174 68,238 1,274,412
At 31 December 2017
AFS financial assets:
MGS and debt securities 712,801 - 712,801
FVTPL financial assets —
designated at inception:
MGS and debt securities 191,131 35,124 226,255
Loans and receivables:
Policy and mortgage loans 20,332 - 20,332
Fixed and call deposits 68,935 - 68,935
Dividend receivables 159 - 159
Amount due from brokers 1,967 - 1,967
Reinsurance assets 33,200 - 33,200
Insurance receivables 15,634 - 15,534
Other receivables * 3,222 136 3,358
Cash and cash equivalents 37,068 14,325 51,393
49,585 1,133,934

1,084,349
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Credit exposure {continued)

Life and Investment

Shareholders’ -linked
COMPANY funds funds Total
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000

At 31 December 2018

AFS financial assets:

MGS and debt securities 778,575 - 778,575
FVTPL financial assets —

designated at inception:

MGS and debt securities 215,098 45,157 260,255

Loans and receivables:
Policy and mortgage loans 22,051 - 22,051
Fixed and call deposits 51,244 - 51,244
Reinsurance assets 32,404 - 32,404
Insurance receivables 14,841 - 14,841
Other receivables * 3,859 127 3,986
Cash and cash equivalents 31,489 22,954 54,443
1,149,561 68,238 1,217,799

At 31 December 2017

AFS financial assets:

MGS and debt securities 712,801 - 712,801
FVTPL financial assets —

designated at inception:

MGS and debt securities 191,131 35,124 226,255

Loans and receivables:
Policy and mortgage loans 20,332 - 20,332
Fixed and call deposits 68,935 - 68,935
Reinsurance assets 33,200 - 33,200
Insurance receivables 15,534 - 15,534
Other receivables * 3,222 136 3,358
Cash and cash equivalents 19,710 14,325 34,035
1,064,865 49,585 1,114,450

* Other receivables exclude prepayments

N



26

V'L L 1122 - 8cZ'89 BY£'0LS (174 1ZL'961 108'9eY
0L0'0L1 - - ¥G6'Z2 £66'L (114 0S¥'el £69'LL sjusjeanba yseo pue yseo
986'c 1122 - L2 z8G'l - - - S|qEAIS0al JALND
Ly8'rL - - - ¥yl - - - SS|QBAIE93] SoUBINSU|
YOP'ce - - - £8¢ - 1Z1'ze - sjesse aoueINsuBY
FA RS - - . - - - - 2lLe S12%0.1q WoJ) anp JUnowy
vLL - - - vLL - - - salqeAlsoal puspialg
¥re'ls - - - SiL'L - 12Z°1€ ezl s)isodap ||e2 pue pexid
150'ze - - - 150'22 - - - sueo| abebuow pue Aoljod
S9|qeAI903l pUB SUBDT
$62'092 - - 151'st GES'LLL - 0£L'9zZ ceh'LL SO[UNI9S Jgap pue SOW

;uoidesur 1e peieulisap
— s)esse |elouel 1d1A4

G15'8L2 - - - SLL9LP - £6.'48 190722 Sa(JUNJ9s 1q8p pue SOHN
:S198SE [BlOUBULY SV
g8l0Z Jlequedag e W

000.NY 000.Nd 000N 000.N 000, 000.NY 000.Nd 000.Nd
[ejol paJieaull pue paliedur jou spunj paxui pajel 10N v w vy
anp 1sed ng enp ised “JUBUSBAU| panedwi Jou anp-jsed JaynaN dnNoy¥9

‘saltediaunog jo sbupes upaio
s Auedwog sy o} Buipioooe sjesse Buikpsselo Aq Auedwosn pue dnoig) sy 0 aunsodxa Yysil Jpeto sy Buipieba. uoneuLoul sapinold mojaq a|ge) ayl

‘epeib anenoads se palsseD ale y 0} Yy Jo ebuel sy) apisino |je) tey) sjassy ‘Bunel ajqissod
1s8ybly ay; si yvy "sellediaunos jo sBunes yipaio (d @ S,) $100d 9 pJepuels pue (OuVIN,) peylag uoyelodio) Buney ueiserely ‘(AVY,) erskelep jo
KouaBy Buley suy o) Bulpiodoe sjesse BulAysse}o Aq Auedwon pue dnoug) ay) jo ainsodxa ysi 1pald ay} BuipseBal uonewlojul saplAold mojag s|qe) ay |

bBuperiipaid Aq @insodxs JIpal)
{panupuoo) ysi ypaid {e)

(Q3INNILNOD) SYSIY TVIONYNIL

(@3NNILNOD) 8102 ¥IFGNIDAA L€ - SINIWILYLS TVIONYNIH IHL OL ST1ON

(e1shejey ui pajelodioou))

avHY39 3ONVENSNI 34171 NIV vXV

M | 6ELECL
‘ON Auedwo)




£6

PEB'EEL’L PP6'E - 595'6Y ¥1e'0925 0% 80V'cl1 ££9'08¢
£6E°'1LS - - Gze'vl 269 0g Z269'c pea'ee
85¢e'e 22°2% - 9¢l (zes) - - -
PES'GL - - - +ES'GL - - -
00Z'¢e - - - £8e - L1B'EE -
296°L - - - - - - 196'1
651 - - - 6S1 - - -
GE6'89 - - - YEL'L - S1L'09 989/
zee'oz - - - 2ee'oz - - -
56Z'9Z2 - - yzL'se 210601 - 90L's 800°2.
L08'cLL - - - 588°6/¢ - 7AW 8ce'Log
000N 000N 000NY 000.NY 000N 000.NYH 000NY 000N
Iejo paleduwr pue peledul jou spuny paxull pslel JON v Yy Vv

anpised ing anp jsed -UaLIISaAU| pasedw tou anp-jsed JayusN

{panuijuoo)

sjusjeainba yses pue ysen
sejgqealasal Jayio
S9|qeAleda) BoUBINSU|
S]9SSE S0UBINSUIDY
S19M0.Q WO 8np Junowy
sa|qeAldal pusplal]
sysodap ||e2 pue paxi4
sueo| eBebuow pue Lajog
1S9|geAIa0al pue SueoT
S3jNJas Jqop pue SOW
:uondaou; Je pajeubisap
— S}asse [eroueul Td 1A
seljundes Jqap pue SOW
18]988E |RIDUBLY SV
Z10z Jlequedaq LE I

dNOYD

TNeT Jipaio AQ eInsoaxa 1Ipaiy)

{PSnuRUoD) Ys1 NPaID (e}

{Q3aNNILNOD) SMSIY TVIONYNIL

(@3NNILNOD) 810z ¥IFNTDAA L€ - SINIWILYLS TVIONYNIH THL OL STLON

{e1sAe[ey ul pajelodioou))

AvHd39 ZONYHNSNI 3417 NId4V ¥XV

M| e6elegs

‘oN Aueduion

€e



6

66.°212')

1482 - 8£2'89 S/1L°0/S 0¢ 122961 89e'08¢
Al - - ¥56'22 £66'1L 0¢ 0SP'el 9z0'9l
986°¢t 112'e - 12l 2851 - - -
L¥e'vl - - - L¥8'vL - - -
A - - - £8¢ - (A4S -
e LS - - - GIL'L - lze'le Zr8'ch
150'ce - - - L50'2Z - - -
GG2'092 - - 1GL'Sy GES'L1L - 0£1'92 cer'sL
515'844 - - - SL2'9LY - €6.'/8 L90'v.2
000,AH 000.NY 000, N¥ 000N 0004 000N 000.4d 000.NY
el paneduwl pue alfedu jou Spunj paxu| pefeI 1N v W Vv
anp 1sed Ing anp 1sed -JUBLIISBAU| pasedw lou anp-jsed JayusN

sjusjeainba yseo pue ysen
s8|qeAla0al 1aylD)
S9|(BAIGDD] a0UBINSU|
5]9ssE aouURINSUeY
sysodep (jeo pue paxi4
sueo| abeBuow pue Adijod
SA|QBAIS3) PUR SUBDT
sanunoes Jqep pue SO
:uoidaou| 1e pareubisap
— sjesse jeoueul 7d.1Ad
Sa)jUN99s Jgep pue SO
:5198se [BIDURUY Sy

810¢ IsquadaQ LE W

ANVdINOD

(panunuo9) -sajedisunod jo sBuiel Jpaio
sAuedwog ay; o} Buipioooe s)ssse Buikyissed Aq Auedwon pue dnoig ay) Jo ainsodxe s JIpald ay; BuipseBal uonewuojul saplacid mojeq 9|qe; aylL

(penuiuoo) Buer Ipaid AQ SINSodxs Npald)

(panunuoa) ysu IpaLd (e)

(Q3NNILNOD)} SHSTY TVIONYNIA

{@3NNILNOD) 8102 ¥AFINTOIA L€ - SINIWILYLS TVIONYNI4 IHL OL STION

(e1sfejewy ul pajetodioou))

AvHAE9 AONVANSNI 3417 NIJAY vYXV

M | BELEZL

‘oN Auedwon

ee



G6

oSt FLL L 7¥6'E - cas'ay GGL'9es 0s S0¥'cLL 80¢'L9¢
GE0'vE - - Gee'rl ¢69 0§ Z69'e 9.2'Gl
8ag'e vr6'e - T (zz2) - - -
¥£5'G) - - - y£6'GL - - -
poz'es - - - €82 - LIB'ZE -
GE£6'89 - - - pel'l - GLL'09 0999°'2
Zee'oz - - - [AX S ITA - - -
5G2'9¢e - - vel'se L10'60L - 901'g 800'24
108'gLs - - - G88'6.€ - 816'1L 8E€'19¢
000N Co0NY Qoo 000.NH 000.NH 000.NY Q00.NY 000N
Bl paneduw; pue padiedw ou Spuny pasulf pojBl 10N v v vy
anp ised ng anp jsed -JuausaAUl padiedw) Jou anp-ised JaylioN

sjuajealinba yses pue ysen
sajgeAlaoal JBYIQ
$3[(EA203) SoURINSU|
S]aSSE AoUBINSUIY
sysodap ||eo pue paxig
sueo] abefuow pue Aoljod
'SB|qBAI808) pUR SUBOT
Sa)undas Jqap pue SoW
:uondsoul ye psjeubisap
- S]9SSE |BlouBUl 1d1Ad
SaNN08s 1gep pue SN
IS]98Se |epuBulY S4Y
£10¢18quedeq ¢ I

ANVJNOO

(panunueas) ‘saedisiunoco jo sbunes upadd
sAuedwo) ay) o} Buipioooe sjesse Bulkpsselo Aq Auedwos pue dnolg ay) Jo ainsodxe ysu Jpald ayy Buipiebal uolewoju; sapiaoid Mojaq Sige) 8y |

(panunuoo) Burel IpaId Aq aInsodxs Ipai)

(Panuyuod) ¥s1 YPBID (e)

(Q3NNILNOD) SMSIY IVIDNVYNIL

(Q3INNILNOD) 8102 ¥IFNIOIA LE - SINIWILYLS TVIONYNIA IHL OL STLON

(eisAelepy Ul pajeradioou))

AVHA3E IONYANSNI 34177 NId4V ¥XV

M | BELEC.

‘oN Auedwion

£e



33

Company No.

723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
{(a) Credit risk {continued)

Credit exposure by credit rating (continued)

It is the Group and Company’s policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across its credit
portfolio. This enables management fo focus on the applicable risks and the comparison of credit
exposures across all lines of business and products, The rating system is supported by a variety of
financial analytics combined with processed market information to provide the main inputs for the
measurement of counterparty risk. All internal risk ratings are tailored to the various categories and
are derived in accordance with the Group and Company’s rating policy. The attributable risk ratings
are assessed and updated regularly.

The Group and Company have not provided the credit risk analysis for the financial assets of the unit-
linked business. This is due to the fact that for unit-linked business, the liability to policyholders is
linked to the performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities and the shareholders have
no direct exposure to any credit risk in these assets.

The Group and Company actively manages its product mix to ensure that there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

Impaired financial assets
As af 31 December 2018, there are no impaired insurance receivables (2017: RM Nil).
As at 31 December 2018, based on the individual assessment of other receivables, there are impaired

receivables of RM2,277,000 (2017: RM3,945,000). A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment
loss on other receivables is as follows:

201 2017

GROUP AND COMPANY RM'000 RM'000

At 1 January 3,945 1,989
{(Write back)/ allowance for impairment during the

financial year (Note 24) (1,668) 1,956

At 31 December (Note 11) 2,277 3,945

As at 31 December 2018, based on the individual assessment of available-for-sale financial assets,
there are impaired available-for-sale financial assets of RM824,000 (2017: RM824,000). A
reconciliation of the allowance for impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets is as follows:

2018 017

GROUP AND COMPANY RM'000 RM’000

At 1 January 824 2,691
Write back of impairment during the

financial year (Note 22) - {1,867)

At 31 December 824 824
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

FINANGIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(b)  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk of the Group and Company being unable to meet its obligations at a reasonable
cost or at any time. The Group and Company manages this risk by holding sufficient quantity of liquid
investments that can be readily converted to cash.

Maturity profiles

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the
Group and Company based on remaining undiscounted contractual obligations, including interest
payable and receivable. For insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets, maturity profiles are
determined based on the estimated timing of net cash outflows from the recognised insurance liabilities.
Unit-linked liabilities are repayable or transferable on demand and are included in the “up to a year”
column. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.

No
Carrying Uptoa 1-5 Cvers maturity
GROUP value year ears years date Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

At 31 December 2018

AFS financial assets:

Equity securities 131,217 - - - 131,217 131,217
MGS and debt securities 778,575 65,965 184,589 890,409 - 1,150,963
Investment-linked funds 18,648 - - - 18,648 18,648
Unit and property trust funds 210,616 - - - 210,616 210,616

FVTPL financial assets —
designated at inception:

MGS and debt securities 260,255 39,740 96,621 23751 - 373,872
Equity securities 70,513 - - - 70,513 70,513
Unit and property trust funds 140,426 - - - 140,426 140,426
Loans and receivables:
Paolicy and mortgage loans 22,051 22,051 - - - 22,051
Fixed and call deposits 51,244 51,244 - - - 51,244
Dividend receivables 174 174 - - - 174
Amount due from brokers 812 812 - - - 812
Reinsurance assets 32,404 5,759 1,828 24 817 - 32,404
Insurance receivables 14,841 14,841 - - - 14,841
Other receivables 3,986 820 1,002 - 2,164 3,986
Cash and cash equivalents 110,070 110,070 - - - 110,070

Total assets 1,845,832 311,476 284,040 1,152,737 573,584 2,331,837

Insurance contract liabilities 1,412,469 342,129 28,844 1,044,077 19,685 1,434,745

Insurance claims liabilities 31,723 31,723 - - - 31,723
Insurance payables 43,728 30,985 10,924 1,809 - 43,728
Reinsurance payables 10,524 10,524 - - - 10,524
Other payables 142,261 140,626 1,634 - - 142,260
Total liabilities 1,640,705 555,997 41,402 1,045,886 19,695 1,662,980
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk {(continued)

Maturity profiles (continued)

No
Carrying Uptoa 1-5 Over 5 maturity
GROUP value year years years date Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000

At 31 December 2017

AFS financial assets:

Equity securities 136,532 - - - 136,532 136,532
MGS and debt securities 712,801 56,860 216,241 762,181 - 1,035,282
Investment-linked funds 19,525 - - - 19,525 19,525
Unit and property trust funds 204,689 - - - 204,689 204,689

FVTPL financial assets —
designated at inception:

MGS and debt securities 226,255 17,644 119,635 168,952 - 306,231
Equity securities 73,458 - - - 73,458 73,458
Unit and property trust funds 94,116 - - - 94,116 94,1186
Loans and receivables:
Policy and mortgage loans 20,332 20,329 3 - - 20,332
Fixed and call deposits 68,935 68,935 - - - 68,935
Dividend receivables 159 159 - - - 159
Amount due from brokers 1,967 1,967 - - - 1,967
Reinsurance assets 33,200 6,465 2,357 24 378 - 33,200
Insurance receivables 15,534 15,534 - - - 15,534
Other receivables 3,358 194 1,000 - 2,164 3,358
Cash and cash equivalents 51,393 51,393 - - - 51,393
Total assets 1,662,254 239,480 339,236 955,511 530,484 2,064,711

Insurance contract liabilities 1,254,427 296,061 20,919 936,710 10,084 1,263,774

Insurance claims liabilities 22,189 22,189. - - 22,189
Insurance payables 63,211 20,241 38,818 4,852 - 63,911
Reinsurance payables 8,097 8,097 - - - 8,097
Other payables 113,922 109,002 4,920 - - 113,922

Total liabilities 1,462,546 455,590 64,657 941,562 10,084 1,471,893
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
{b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity profiles (continued)

No
Carrying Uptoa 1-5 Overd maturity
COMPANY value year years years date Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000

At 31 Becember 2018

AFS financial assets:

Equity securities 42,435 - - - 42 435 42,435
MGS and debt securities 778,575 65,965 194,589 890,409 - 1,150,963
Investment-linked funds 18,648 - - - 18,648 18,648
Unit and property trust funds 335,699 - - - 335,699 335,699

EVTPL financial assets —
designated at inception:

MGS and debt securities 260,255 39,740 96,621 237,511 - 373,872

Equity securities 70,513 - - - 70,513 70,513

Unit and property trust funds 140,426 - - - 140,426 140,426
Loans and receivables:

Policy and mortgage loans 22,051 22,051 - - - 22,051

Fixed and call deposits 51,244 51,244 - - - 51,244
Reinsurance assets 32,404 5,759 1,828 24817 - 32,404
Insurance receivables 14,841 14,841 - - - 14,841
Other receivables 3,986 820 1,002 - 2,164 3,986
Cash and cash equivalents 54,443 54,443 - - - 54,443
Total assets 1,825,520 254,863 294,040 1,152,737 609,885 2,311,525

Insurance contract liabilities 1,412,469 342,129 28,844 1,044,077 19,685 1,434,745

Insurance claims liabilities 31,723 31,723 - - - 31,723
Insurance payables 43,728 30,995 10,924 1,809 - 43,728
Reinsurance payables 10,524 10,524 - - - 10,524
Other payables 141,797 140,163 1,634 - - 141,797

Total liabilities 1,640,241 555,534 41,402 1,045,886 19,695 1,662,517
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Company No.
7237392 (W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity profiles (continued)

No
Carrying Uptoa 1-5 Cver5 maturity
COMPANY value vear years years date Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'C00 RM'000 RM'000

At 31 December 2017

AFS financial assets:

Equily securities 40,099 - - - 40,099 40,099
MGS and debt securities 712,801 56,860 216,241 762,181 - 1,035,282
Investment-linked funds 19,525 - - - 19,525 19,525
Unit and property trust funds 319,310 - - - 318,310 319,310

FVTPL financial assets —
designated at inception:

MGS and debt securities 226,255 17,644 119,635 168,952 - 306,231

Equily securities 73,458 - - - 73,458 73,458

Unit and property trust funds 94,116 - - - 94,116 94,116
Loans and receivables:

Policy and mortgage loans 20,332 20,329 3 - - 20,332

Fixed and call deposits 68,935 68,935 - - - 68,935
Reinsurance assets 33,200 6,465 2,357 24,378 - 33,200
Insurance receivables 15,534 15,534 - - - 15,534
Other receivables 3,358 194 1,000 - 2,164 3,358
Cash and cash equivalents 34,035 34,035 - - - 34,035
Total assets 1,660,858 218,996 339,236 955,511 548,672 2,063,415

Insurance contract liabilities 1,254,427 296,061 20919 936,710 10,084 1,263,774

Insurance claims liabilities 22,189 22,189 - - - 22,189
Insurance payables 63,911 20,241 38,818 4,852 - 63,911
Reinsurance payables 8,097 8,097 - - - 8,097
Other payables 112,738 107,818 4,920 - - 112,738

Total liabilities 1,461,362 454,406 64,667 941,562 10,084 1,470,709
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(c) Market risk

The net asset value of the Group and Company's investments may fluctuate due to changing economic,
political and market conditions. Market risk is managed through portfolio diversification and asset
allocaticn.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk whereby the value of the assets and liabilities will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk embaodies not only the potential losses but also the
potential for gains.

In the investment-linked business, the policyholders bear the currency risk on the foreign assets held
in some of the investment-linked funds as the policy benefits are directly linked to the net asset value
of the funds.

Hong
Kong Indonesia Korea Singapore Taiwan
GROUP AND COMPANY Dollar Rupiah Wons Dollar Dollar Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 31 December 2018

Financial instruments:
FVTPL 15,302 1,464 486 4,171 946 22,369

Total FVTPL - outside Malaysia 15,302 1,464 486 4,171 946 22,369

At 31 December 2017

Financial instruments:
FVTPL 9,018 1,464 3,676 4,169 1,000 19,327

Total FVTPL - outside Malaysia 9,018 1,464 3,676 4,169 1,000 19,327

Interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument and the underlying
policy liabilities for which the assets are intended to fund will fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rates. The Company aims to mitigate the impact of fluctuations in interest rates on its financial position
by choosing an asset mix appropriate for ifs liabilities, subject to the current investments' market
conditicns, prices and availability of appropriate securities.

The Management Investment Committee regularly reviews the asset liabilities mismatch studies carried
out by the Company and reviews the investment strategies to manage and monitor any net interest rate
risk or asset liability mismatch risk.

The Group and Company are subject to some extent of duration mismatch due to the longer policy
liabilities’ duraticn than the available bond durations.
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Company No.
723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
{c) Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all other
variables held constant, showing the impact on profit before tax (due to changes in fair value of floating
ratefyield financial assets) and equity (that reflects adjustments to profit before tax and re-valuing fixed
rate/yield financial assets). The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the
ultimate impact on interest rate risk but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in variables, variables
had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these variables are
non-linear.

Impact on
profit before Impact on
GROUP AND COMPANY Change in variables taxation equity
RM'000 RM'000
At 31 December 2018
Risk free rate +50 basis points (7,564) (5,749)
Risk free rate -50 basis points 8,023 6,097
Impact on
profit before Impact on
Change in variables taxation equity
RM'000 RM'000
At 31 December 2017
Risk free rate +50 basis points (5,647) (4,527)
Risk free rate -50 basis points 5,936 4,730

The impact to the Company’s equity arose from the Shareholders’ fund and Non-participating life fund’s
investments in fixed income securities. The financial assets under the Shareholders’ fund is classified
as available-for-sale, while the fixed income securities under the Non-participating fund is classified as
fair value through profit or loss financial assets designated upon initial recognition. The impact to the
Company's profit before taxation arose from the fair value through profit or loss financial assets, which
is from the Non-participating fund only. The impact arising from changes in interest rate risk to fixed
income securities of the Participating life fund and Investment-linked funds are retained in the insurance
contract liabilities.

Price risk

The Company is exposed to price risk arising from the investments held by the Company in equity
securities, investment-linked funds, unit and property trust funds which are classified as available-for-
sale financial assets and fair value through profit or loss financial assets designated upon initial
recognition. To manage the price risk arising from investment in these securities, the Company
diversifies its portfolio in accordance with the prescribed limits for each class of investments.

As liabilities are long-term in nature, a balanced approach between fixed income and equity securities
is taken to achieve an appropriate balance.
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Company No.

723739 | W

AXA AFFIN LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(c) Market risk {continued)
Price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the fair values of
the investment in equity securities, investment-linked funds, unit and property trust funds, with all other
variables held constant showing the impact to the Group and Company's profit before tax and equity.
The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on price risk,
but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in variables, variables had to be changed on an individual
basis. It should be noted that movements in these variables are non-linear.

Impact on
profit before Impact on
GROUP AND COMPANY Change in variables taxation equity
RM'000 RM'000
At 31 December 2018
Market price +10% - 13,252
Market price -10% - {13,252)
At 31 December 2017
Market price +10% - 12,779
Market price -10% - (12,779)

The impact to the Group and Company's equity arose from the Shareholders’ fund and Non-
participating life fund’s investments in equity securities, investment-linked funds, unit and property trust
funds which are classified as avaitable-for-sale financial assets. There is no impact to the Group and
Company’s profit before tax as the impact of changes in price risk to the equity securities, unit and
property trust funds of the Participating life fund and Investment-linked funds are retained in the
insurance contract liabilities.

INSURANCE FUNDS
The Group and Company’s activities are organised by funds and segregated into the Life and
Shareholders’ funds in accordance with the Financial Services Act, 2013 and Insurance Regulations,

1896.

The Group and Company's statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss have been
further analysed by funds.
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